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Make steel

l g o l {Sumitomo Steel Foundry began producing cast-steel.)

Sumitomo Metals has strived to contribute to society through its steeimaking activities for over 100
years, guided by the Sumitomo’s business spirit, which is underpinned by 400 years of tradition.

Open hearth furnace of the Sumitomo Steel Foundry




Make our future

2008

We are working to fulfill our corporate social responsibility
and win even greater trust from all stakeholders.
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Steel converer at the Wakayama Steel Works




Business Spirit and History in Manufacturing

I Sumitomo’s Business Spirit of Over 400 Years

*You should exercise prudence in business and in all aspects of your life,” This was a message written by
Masatomeo Sumitomo (1585-1652,) the founder of the House of Sumitomo. It was incorporated into the Rules
Governing the House of Sumitomo, has been long respected as the business principle of the House, and is
even today the very basis of the activities of Sumitomo Metals.

Sumitomo shall place prime importance on integrity and sound management.

Sumitomo shall manage its activities with foresight and flexibility in order
to cope effectively with the changing times.

Under no circumstances, however, shall it pursue easy gains or act imprudently.
Business Principles from the Rules Governing the House of Sumitomoe, 1891.

A man of noble character esteems wealth, and is scrupulous in seeking
the way to acquire it.
Personal motto of Teigo Iba, appointed Second Director-General of Sumitomo in 1900.

Sumitomo’s Business Spirit, which we trace back 400 years to Masatomo Sumitomeo, the founder,
remains an integral part of Sumitomo Metals’ management policy today. It forms the basis for the
company’s policy for sustained growth strategy, risk management, and compliance.

| More Than 100 Years of Manufacturing Experience

In 1897, Sumitomo Copper Plant, the precursor of Sumitomo Metals, was established in the present Kita
Ward, Osaka City. Four years later, in 1901, Sumitomo began production of cast steel at Sumitomo Stee!
Foundry in the present Konohana Ward, Osaka City. One hundred years since then, Sumitomo Metals is
manufacturing seamless pipe for oit and natural gas, wheels and axles for railway cars, steel sheets for
automobile bodies, and other high-grade steel products. The spirit, tradition, and technologies of
steelmaking that generations of Sumitome men and women have preserved and cultivated have been
inherited by Sumitomo Metals in the present day.

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid,




that Balances Quality and Scale

Sumitomo Metals had two periods of strong, postwar
sales growth: Japan's high economic growth period
that lasted until the 1960’s; and the so-called bubble
economy period in the latter half of the 1980°s. Despite
strong sales, profitability remained low and fluctuated
significantly in these periods. After the collapse of the
bubble economy in 1993, the Company as well as
Japan's steel industry suffered from low revenues and
profits for a decade.

Sumitomo Metals launched its Medium-Term
Business Plan (fiscal 2002-2005) and implemented
drastic reform. We withdrew from non-core
businesses, carried out siructural reform of our stael
business, and significantly improved earnings. At the
same time, we paid down what had become
excessive debts and started to prepare for the next
growth stage.

Since fiscal 2003, our sales and earnings have been
growing. Expansion in worldwide steel demand has
contributed to this but our technological investments
which we did not suspend even during the sluggish
years of the 1990’s white we carried out restructuring
also enabled favorable performance. In the current
Medium-Term Business Plan (fiscal 2006-2008,) our key
objective is “accelerating distinctiveness.” We are intent
on becoming resilient to downside risks such as those
originating in economic weakness, and aim at
achieving sustained growth with focus on quality.
Specific measures inciude allocating more managerial
resources to our competitive areas such as seamless
pipe, and railway wheels and axles, where we have
distinctive products which have attained high market
shares. We are also promoting aliiances and joint
ventures in Japan and overseas.

Sales from 1966 to 2007: Advance to a new growth stage.

. Japan's high economic
(¥ billion) growth period

. . . Structural Accelerating
Japan's bubble Global economic
ecanomy period growth
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Recurring Profit (1966 — 2007): Earnings’ level and quality have improved dramaticalily.
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Note: Recurting prefit is an important management indicator at Sumitomo Metals and 2 common item on financial statements in Japan; calculated by adding to or
subtracting from operating profit fems such as interest and dividend income, equily in eamings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies,

interest expense, and foreign exchange gains or osses.
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Financial Indicators

Sales; Operating Profit Margin

Total Assets; Return on Assets (ROA)

Return on Equity (ROE)
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Non-Financial Indicators (Intangible Assets)

Sumitomo Metals’ management focuses not only on tangible assets {financial and physical assets) that appear on financial
statements, but also on intangible assets that do not appear on the balance sheet, which include customers, human,
technology, and organizational assets. Below are some representative data that we monitor on a regular basis.
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Make Steel, Make Our Future

Foundation of Sumitomo Metals

Advance to a New Growth Stage that Balances Quality and Scale
Financial / Non-Financial Indicators

Message from the President

Message from the Management in Charge of Finance & Accounting
Global Expansion

Review of Operations

Pipe & Tube

Steel Sheet, Plate, Titanium & Structural Steel
Railway, Automotive, Machinery Parts & Other Steel
Reference Data

Vision on Raising Corporate Value
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Human Assets

() Rolied coil of steel sheets {hot-dip galvanized)

(Typical coil: 1 mm thick, 1,524 mm wide, 29 tons) Technology Assets

(@ Railway axle with wheefs Organizational Assets
(1 ton in typical weight)
@ Seamless pipe Corporate Social Responsibility

(Typical pipe: 140 mm outside diameter, 12 m long, 400 kg)

Note: Forward-looking Statements Financial Section
The business forecasts and forward-looking statements in this annual I Inf .
report are based on information available at the time of publication, and con- nvestor Information
tain potential risks and uncertainties. Consequently, actual results may dif-
fer from forecasts stated in the report due to a range of factors.
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To All Our Stakeholders

Sumitomo Metals is aiming to maximize corporate value
by delivering sustained growth that balances quality and scale.

Targeted Direction of Growth
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We are aiming for sustained growth.

Operating Performance

Based on medium-term initiatives, we have
been substantially improving earning power
and the quality of earnings.

Sumitomo Metals is at a new growth stage. In fiscal
2007, consolidated net sales grew 9% year on year to
¥1,744.5 billion. Recurring profit declined 9% to ¥298.2 bil-
lion, but excluding temporary factors such as effects of
revision of the taxation system, profit remained at the
level of the previous fiscal year and we maintained our
medium-term growth trend. This performance was sup-
ported by strong demand growth, but | believe that it
was also the result of “restructuring,” which we promoted
under the previous Medium-Term Business Plan, and
“accelerating distinctiveness,” which we have promoted
under the current Medium-Term Business Plan.

For fiscal 2008, we are forecasting a 16% year on
year decline in recurring prefit to ¥250 billion, due princi-
pally to the impact of surging raw material prices. |
believe that the rise in raw material prices will be
absorbed by companywide cost reductions and a revision
in product prices, but it will take time to negotiate an
increase in product prices. Sumitomo Metals’ managerial

approach emphasizeés to add strength to business areas
that are already strong, and to improve the quality of
earnings so that we ¢an withstand downside risks. We do
not intend to focus our efforts on commadity-grade
products and distributor products, where we could pass on

increases in raw material prices to product prices without
a time lag. This is begause it contains a risk of drastic fluc-
tuation in profit althpugh it would generate profit in the
short-term. Rather, wie will maintain our policy of continuing
to provide high-value-added products, which are our
forte, to customers with whom we have long-term rela-
tionships built on trgst, even if it takes time for prices to

improve. We have agopted this approach because it will
lead to the enhancement of cur value in the long term.
On the earnings front, | believe Sumitomo Metals’
earnings will start tg improve in the second half of fiscal
2008. From the second half onward, | believe that cost
reductions, progress in improving product prices,
investment in accelerating distinctiveness, and overseas
investments such as the establishment of a blast-fur-
nace-integrated searhless pipe manufacturing joint-venture
company in Brazil,| will gradually materialize and will
lead to the realizatign of high-quality earnings growth.

Trend in
Recurring Profit

. P

| Structural Transformation of Our Earnings Platform: ;
| Aim for sustained growth with controlled downside earnings risk.

|
|
|

89 92 95 98 02

Previous
Medium-Term
Business Plan

Nete: Recurring profit is an important management indicator at Sumitomeo Metals and a common item on financial statemeants in Japan; ¢alculated by adding to or
subtracting from cperating profit items such as interest and dividend income, equity in earmings of unconsokidated subsidiaries and associated companies,

interest expense, and foreign exchange gains or Josses.

! distinctiveness

05 06 08 (FY) |

Accelerating

Current
Medium-Term
Business Plan
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We are determined to increase core earnings.

impact of Surging Raw Material Prices, and
Countermeasures

We are anticipating a substantial rise in raw
material costs in fiscal 2008. We intend to
absorb this rise through companywide cost
reductions and an revision of product prices.

We estimate that prices for raw materials for steel such as
iron ore and coal will increase by 100% to 200% com-
pared to 2007 levels. Sumitomo Metals has adopted
mechanisms to alleviate increases in raw material
prices, such as use of long-term contracts, but raw
material prices are currently rising dramatically. We esti-
mate that costs will increase by more than ¥30,000 per
product ton {about 30% of product prices} in fiscal
2008, and this will have an impact of approximately
¥400 bitlion in total (equivalent to 23% of net sales in
fiscal 2007.)

My role is to increase long-term value. | do not think
we should increase spot sales on the basis of ease in
passing on higher raw material prices immediately, con-
trary to our medium-term strategies. Rather than focusing
on eamings on a single-year basis, which will be influenced
by raw material prices and economic trends, we aim to
grow earnings on a 3-5 year basis in a sustainable way.

The medium-term strategies described here includes
growth in core eamings. Sumitomo Metals’ strength is
having many products that customers say “only
Sumitomo Metals can provide.” At Sumitomo Metals,

we use the term “core eamings” to refer to businesses rep-
resented by these products and businesses which are
expected to deliver stable earnings by supplying dis-
tinctive products. At present, the ratio of core eamings to
operating profit is about 70%, and in order to pursue
growth of these core earnings, we are proactively making
investments to add strength to business areas that are
already strong.

Surging raw material prices reflect worldwide growth in
demand for steel materials and energy, and while being a
cost-push factor, they are also behind growing demand for
energy-related products such as seamless pipe. Based on
the premise that relationships built on trust with our
customers are of utmost importance, we will revise
product prices and strive on not overlooking demand
growth opportunities of energy-related products.

in terms of securing raw materials, Sumitomo Metals is
in an advantégeous position. We are able to manufacture
all the sintered ore (cakes of iron cre powder) and coke
(baked coal) that we need. As we have concluded long-
term contracts for a high percentage of raw materials
and charter vessels that transport the raw materials, we
are able to ensure stable procurement. In addition, we
ensure stable procurement of important raw materials for
alloys, such as manganese and nickel, from partners
with whom we have strong links, including capital rela-
tionships.

We are aiming to achteve

Growth in
Core Earnings’

02 07

*Ses datails on page 57.

Earnings Structure of Sumitomo Metals’ Steel Business: Aim to increase core earnings.

stable, long-term growth o
rather than maximize {\
short-term earnings. s g

‘Leng-Term ContractiBased;Sales::
: T

Less V

Pass on

raw materials
cost increases immediately
to sales prices : reflected

Impact from
economic changes

High. Volatile
: earnings

Pass on
raw materials
costs increases

to sales prices : Time lag

Impact from  Limited. Stable,
| economic changes : growing earnings
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We accelerate distinctiveness and add strength to strength.

Strategy for Balancing Quality and Scale

We endeavour to realize sustained growth that
balances both quality and scale. The keywords
for this are “Accelerating Distinctiveness” and
“Add Strength to Strong Areas.”

Worldwide steel demand in 2007 amounted to 1.2 billion
tons, an increase of nearly 7% year on year. Demand in
2002 having been 0.9 billion tons, this newer total signifies
growth at the annual rate of 6% during the past five
years. As demand stayed almost flat in the 1990’s, |
believe the steel business entered an era of new growth at
the start of the decade beginning in 2000.

It is important not to miss this growth opportunity.
Nevertheless, if an increase in scale causes higher fluctua-
tion in eamings, we are not contributing to create corporate
value, We have therefore been shifting our product mix
from commodity-grade products to high-value-added,
distinctive products. Representative distinctive products
that Sumitomo Metals produces are seamless pipe for
energy development and power generation facilities,
steel sheets for automobiles, and railway wheels and

axles. Based on the policy of enhancing areas of the
Company's strength, we will continue investment in
human resources, technology, and equipment in these
business domains.

We are taking steps to seize overseas growth opportu-
nities. Sumitomo Metals' basic strategy on overseas
expansion is to aim for growth after minimizing down-
side risk by choosing reliable partners and bringing
together our technological capabilities, our partners’
local know-how, and each other's customer base. In fiscal
2007, we decided to make an investment in a joint-venture
project involving the manufacture and sale of steel
sheets in Vietnam with China Steel Corporation, and to
provide technical assistance to Bhushan Steel's Orissa
Project in India. Construction also moved forward in the
manufacturing joint-venture business in Brazil. These
projects will of course enhance our earning power.
Moreover, we also regard as important that they represent
an opportunity for substantial growth in the abilities of
our young personnel, who will operate the Company in the
future.

{(¥thousand/ton)

|
W -
. £ - y
i = 100 | Sumitomo Metals
-
B i Kobe Steel
B o - - -
' S ‘

E F
- — - — =
. = o
I E
!

Expand scale (Crude steel production)

Growth that Balances Quality and Scale

Size of circle = operating margin
A

POSCO(South Korea)

o3 Nippon- -« - -
Steel . /ArcelorMittal
! *(Netherlands)

. = e d _. .
40 - 120

(millions of tons, p.a.)

Note ; Result for a period from April 1,2007 to March 31, 2008
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We will contribute to resolving environmental problems through technology.

Environmental Initiatives

Tackling environmental problems by deploying
technology is in Sumitomo’s DNA. Our products
are contributing to reductions in customers’
CO2 emissions.

The Sumitomo Group has DNA (that is, business spirit that
has been inherited) that calls for protecting the environment
by the use of technology. Teigo Iba, who was appointed
Director Genera!l of Sumitomo in 1900, took decisive
action to replant the mountains in the Besshi area in
Shikoku Island. where many trees had been lost as a
result of development of a copper mine. Subsequently,
Sumitomo also resolved the problem of atmospheric
poliution through an improvement in copper refining
technology, and the lush mountains and fields were
restored. We have inherited this kind of dedication to
preservation of the natural environment and it is our
mission to build on this dedication.

At Sumitomo Metals, we have allocated 80% of R&D
expenses for the Corporate Research & Development
Laboratories, whose core activities are on behalf of both
fundamental and commercialization research, to envi-
ronment-related research, including the development of
products that contribute to the environment. The suc-
cess of these efforts is exemplified by the fact that
Sumitomo Metals has one of the world’s lowest levels of

CO2 emissions per ton of crude steel production, and
blast furnaces with the longest life in the world.

Specific examples of our products that contribute to
the environment are oil well pipes that enable the devel-
opment of natural gas, a form of energy that has a rela-
tively small environmental impact, boiler tubes that
enable power generation with high energy efficiency,
and products that contribute to the development of
lighter weight vehicles. We calculate that our products
have the effect of reducing COz2 emissions by 120 million
tons a year, which greatly surpasses the COz that the
Company generates (26.6 million tons.) These products are
the source of Sumitomo Metals’ competitiveness and
distinctiveness and also a business opportunity.

Sumitomo Metals has also received many external
commendations. In 2008, for the second consecutive
year, Sumitomo Metals received the highest rating of
“companies with particularly impressive environmental
programs” in the environmental rating loan system of
the Development Bank of Japan (DBJ) Sumitomo
Metals is the only steelmaker that has received this rating.
Furthermore, in 2007, Sumitomo Metals was the only
steelmaker selected as one of 68 companies in the
world that have shown excellent endeavors related to
the prevention of global warming by the Carbon
Disclosure Project {CDP,) which is located in London.

Sumitomo Metals is Contributing to CO2 Emission Reduction

COz2 emission
{miilions of tons, p.a.)
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We will raise corporate value.

Reinforcing Alliances

Joint utilization of crude steel,
mutual consignment of products

Nippon Steel

Corporation ; !
manufacturing, business

QCEEESCU R C R I integration of Group companies

Sumitomo Business collaboration

Corporation

by combining
the strengths of each other

Sumitomo| Deepenand

( )

|
Pursuing benefits
@Constant full-capacity

expand mutual operations i

Metals cooperation @Building strong Group
companies

@Overseas expansion

. J

Reinforcing Strategic Alliances and Relationships
with Partners

The creation of a long-term cooperative rela-
tionship and showing a satisfactory return
relative to capital costs are Sumitomo Metals’
criteria for capital alliances.

We have further promoted mutual equity investments as a
means of deepening our framework for cooperation with
Nippon Steel Corporation and Kobe Steel. For example,
we established a system to ensure constant operation
at full capacity based on the mutual sharing of steel
making capacity and mutual consignment of products
manufacturing capacity, and also proceeded with the
integration of Group companies. We are enhancing
value by integrating the stainless steel business, the
welding rod business, the roll manufacturing business,
the building material-use colored steel sheet business,
and the road and civil engineering products business,
by supplying slabs to Nippon Steel and Kobe Steel, and by
undertaking OEM production of hot-rolled steel sheets
at Nippon Steel. We have also made mutual invest-
ments with Sumitomo Corporation to deepen our coop-
erative relationship in terms of product sales, including
investment in the joint-venture company to manufacture
seamless pipe in Brazil.

These mutual investments differ from traditional cross-
shareholdings aimed at creating stable shareholders.
We will constantly monitor them in terms of the effec-
tiveness of alliances and return on investment (share-
holdings}, for example, and we will make revisions if the
need arises.

Surmnitomo Metat Indusiries,Lid.

Focus More on Raising Sustained Value,
Less on Takeover Defense Measures

We will leave decisions on takeover proposals in
the hands of shareholders, as a fair and rea-
sonable procedure. Our mission is to raise
corporate value.

| believe that Sumitomo Metals’ policy to aim for growth
that emphasizes a balance between quality and scale is
the best means to raise corporate value.

Takeover propasals should be evaluated in terms of
whether they contribute to the best interests of stake-
holders and whether they are add value or not. At a
general meseting of shareholders in June 2006,
Sumitomo Metals passed a resolution regarding its
response policy and rules in the event of a proposal to take
over the Company. The objective of this is not “defense”
but rather to ensure sufficient information and time for
shareholders to make a decision regarding any such
proposal. Specifically, if the party making a takeover
proposal has cobserved the rules, the management of
Sumitomo Metals will announce its opinion regarding
the proposal and put forward a management plan as an
alternative proposal. Then shareholders will decide
whether they will accept the takeover proposal based
on this information. If the party making the takeover
proposal does not observe the rules, the Company may
initiate measures to counter the takeover based on a
resolution of the Board of Directors.

With regard to the term of office of Company directors,
since 2006 Sumitomo Metals has set this as one year, to
contribute to clarified managerial responsibility of directors.




We aim to be a trusted company.

What Sumitomo Metals Intends to Be in Future

Our aim is to earn the trust of all stakeholders,
by raising corporate value throu:qh the enhance-
ment of our “intangible assets.”
My job is to raise corporate value. As the rationale that
forms the basis of governance, Sumitomo Metals
adheres to the business spirit of Sumitomo, which is
represented in the following words. “Sumitomo shall
place prime importance on integrity and sound manage-
ment.” “A man of noble character esteems wealth, and is
scrupulous in seeking the way to acquire it.” We inherited
this spirit as DNA that has had a life thus far of 400
years. In addition to this, we will practice management that
enhances our intangible assets (assets that are not
shown on the balance sheet,) including technologies
that we have cultivated in the course of our history in
manufacturing, which stretches back more than a centu-
1y, the relationships of trust with our customers, and the
pride and commitment that our employees display
toward their work. In these ways, we will enhance our
corporate value. (Please see page 31 onward for a
detailed explanation of intangible assets.}

Underpinned by this business spirit and our manufac-
turing tradition, my maost important job is to win and
retain the trust of all stakeholders, including customers,

shareholders, business partners, local communities, and

employees, by continuing to produce steel products
and helping customers to build their visions for the
future.

| believe paying stable dividends is a fundamental
principle of returning profits to shareholders. Before
deciding on dividend payments, we take into account
such factors as business performance, funds required
for growth-driven investment, and ensuring the liquidity and
soundness of the Company’s financial position.

For fiscal 2007, we paid an annual dividend of 10 yen
per share, an increase of 2 yen from the previous fiscal
year. In fiscal 2008 and beyond, we will work to create an
earnings structure resilient to downside risk, and we will
endeavor to return profits to shareholders in the form of
stable dividends.

Through daily public relations and investor relations
activities, and invitation for factory visits to sharehold-
ers, we hope to build closer relationship with all our
stakeholders and provide a fuller picture of the kind of
company we are. We lock forward to hearing your input.

— e

Hiroshi Tomono
Representative Director and President
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mentir=Charge of Finance"

Cash generated from operations is used to invest in sus- |
tained growth, and the resulting returns are distributed to
shareholders. In fiscal 2007, we made proactive invest- j
ments aimed at growth and increased dividend payments and
share buybacks without imparing ou

r financ_ié_@éléﬁty.

Use of cash flow has changed from debt pay-
ment to investments

The sources and uses of Sumitomo Metals’ cash flow
have changed dramatically in the past five years. Under the
previous Medium-Term Business Plan (fiscal 2002-
2005,) which adopted structural reform as a main
theme, cash generated from operating activities and the
sale of non-core assets was primarily utilized to pay
down debt, while the amount of capital expenditures
was kept within the amount of depreciation and amorti-
zation. As a result, the debt balance decreased by

about ¥1 trillion, from ¥1,648.7 billion at the beginning of
fiscat 2002 to ¥679.7 billion at the end of fiscal 2005.
During the same period, our financial stability was signif-
icantly enhanced with an improvement in the debt to
equity ratio from 6.01 to 0.94.

The main theme of our current Medium-Term
Business Plan (fiscal 2006-2008) is to accelerate dis-
tinctiveness. Our focus has shifted from a recovery in
financial stability to investments directed at sustained
growth. With the aim of adding strength to our areas of
strength and emphasizing a balance between guality

Procurement Use

Use

Sale of assets,

o, Repayment

of borrowings 3.3 Procurement

Yearly Average Cash Flow and Use of Cash: From debt payment to investments (¥ billion / FY)

Use Procurement
Share buybacks®
46.0

N Dabt
(BividendsTaToR BERLIEY

etc. 41.8

108.4 Repayment

ﬁ of borrowings

Operating
cash flow
{Pre-tax}

Investment 160.0
96.5

Interest paid.19.6 |
02~05 Results

{Previous business plan; Annual average)

259.0 Investment

Operating Operating

cash flow cash flow

(Pre-tax) Investment {Pre-tax)
306.6 244.1 3148.9

I Interestpaid 16767

- Interest:paid-12:6--

06~08 Plan

{Current business plan; Annual average) (First 2 years of Current business pian; Annuat average)

06~07 Resulls

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid.

*Share buyback is net of purchase and re-issuance of shares.




Strategy to Balance Quality and Scale

and scale, we have invested in a joint venture in order to
build blast-furnace-integrated steel works to manufac-
ture seamless pipe in Brazil, and in blast furnaces at the
Kashima and Wakayama Steel Works. (Please see
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on page 61 for fur-
ther details on capital expenditures and depreciation.)

During fiscal 2006 and 2007, we accelerated our
investment schedule and invested more than planned.
in fiscal 2008, we intend to continue investing aggressively.
Upon the completion of our current proactive invest-
ments, we anticipate that fiscal 2009 will mark the
beginning of a period when the return from current
investrnents materializes. At the same time, we have
also been returning profits to shareholders through
increased dividends and share buybacks, without
impairing our financial stability.

Financial stability has improved significantly
Total debt at the end of fiscal 2007 amounted to ¥883.8
billion. This amount was higher than the level of ¥717.9 bil-
lion at the end of fiscal 2006 but down significantly from
¥1,648.7 billion at the beginning of fiscal 2002, when the
previous Medium-Term Business Plan was launched.
The two indicators we monitor closely for stability
showed improvement: the equity ratio was 37.3% (versus
11.3% at the end of fiscal 2001) and the debt to equity
ratio was 0.98 {versus 6.01 at the end of fiscal 2001.)
Currently, we are investing in sustained growth while
keeping the debt to equity ratio below 1.0, based on the
viewpoint of financial stabifity and from our past experi-
ence.

Debt and Debt to Equity Ratio: Big improvement

(¥ bdlon) (Times)
[

55
5
45
4
35

1

0l 02 03 04 05 06 07y
_Debt ¥ Debt 10 Equity ratio - |

Capital policy emphasizes balanced use of
cash in investment and shareholder distribu-

tions

Cash generated from operations is used firstly to make
investments aimed at raising corporate value. We carry out
investrments based on the criteria of accelerating dis-
tinctiveness and realizing sustained growth, as well as
providing a return that exceeds the cost of capital. To
ensure capital efficiency, we may borrow money within a
scope that does not impair financial stability.

Sumitomo Metals’ management team puts priority on
returning investment gains to shareholders, primarily in
terms of dividend payments. Qur principle is to pay stable
dividends. In fiscal 2007, we paid an annual dividend of 10
yen per share. At the same time, we bought back
approximately ¥140.0 billion of our own shares during
the past two years, namely, fiscal 2006 and 2007. We
intend to be flexible in purchasing the Company's own
shares in the future.

We will accelerate distinctiveness in order to build an
earnings structure that is resilient to downside risks and to
achieve growth that emphasizes a balance between
guality and scale. This will enable us to maintain stable div-
idend payments.

Yoshinari Ishizuka
Director and Senior Managing Executive Officer

Dividend per Share: Stable payment

¥
12 e om e e
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l GloDal EXPAaNSION: overseas Markets are Becoming Our Source of Growth

Global steel demand is growing on the back of the eco-
nomic surge in emerging countries. We believe that Basic Strategy in Overseas Development
overseas markets present attractive growth opportuni- :
ties to the Sumitomo Metals Group. Cur basic policy in

expanding overseas business is not to merely pursue

growth in terms of quantitative metrics but to add (_Suboptlmal operatl?n and low eﬁrni.ngs b
strength to business areas that are already strong. ci::?:tgﬁfgﬁife: zﬁgﬁi‘yag?lﬁzc:;y'
In proceeding to expand business, we pay careful \_a-c_ij.u..lstt_to local business customers
attention to the location, market, and scale of invest- '
ment, and, when it makes more sense to pursue a joint- '
venture format, we try to select the best possible partners Adopt a joint venture format,
so that each brings complementary competence to the if necessary
joint venture. By making an alliance with a partner, the risk @ Select the best partners
of an imbalanced increase in production relative to that of @ Each brings
sales, leading to suboptimal use of capacity, can be complementary competence

|
|
| controlled. Success in doing this can be expected to
ensure our good use of capacity and to achieve steady

earnings growth at an early date. Regarding marketing and Mana ge risks

sales in the world market, which is one of the keys that will
enable full-capacity operation, our important partner is
Sumitomo Corporation which has a superb worldwide

sales network.

Raise Capacity with Careful Attention to Earnings

Solo investment has a risk Joint investment enables to jumpstart
of suboptimal use of optimal facility at full operation of optimal facility
Average capacity utilization rate Average capacity utilization rate

5@% 5@% S:ﬂ";i::g ° _ ]@@% Partner

Sumitomo Metals Partner

Manufacturing facilities have an optimal scale of capacity for operation based on engineering and economic factors. Full-
capacity utilization of the appropriate scale is a key to be competitive in cost and quality. In case of seamless pipe, the
optimal scale of manufacturing facility is 0.6 million tons p.a.

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid.



{Case 1) Forged Crankshafts Business
Progress in global development strategy is
already evident

Forged crankshafts are a product market we identified at
an early time for our overseas expansion pregram, using
the jeint venture format with the best partners we could
team up with. This has already been successiul,

We were early to respond to the market shift in
demand to forged crankshafts for automotive engines, a
change that resulted from motor vehicle assemblers
assigning higher importance to more compact dimen-
sions, better power output, and lighter weight (for less fuel
consumption.) We established a company to produce
forged crankshafts in Kentucky, the U.S. in the early
1990’s. We started production and sates of crankshaft in
Guangdong, China in 2004; by forming a joint venture
with Germany’s ThysseenKrupp, we were able to supply

crankshafts to both Japanese and European motor
vehicle companies that had expanded in China.

Subsequently, the second forging press line in China
began operation in November 2007, while the operation in
the U.S. will add the third line, which is under construction
and scheduled to start up in January 2009. At present, we
have an 8% global share, with operations in Japan (the
QOsaka Steel Works,} the U.S., and China, After the third line
in the U.S. starts to produce, our global share can rise to
above 10%. Furthermore, we are considering building
another production base in Asig, to increase our capacity to
10 million units of crankshafts {equivalent to a 13% world
share) by 2015.

Automotive Forged Crankshafts: Aiming global share of over 10%

Guangdong; China

Apprax, 2.1 million units *

*

Global share

Approx. 2.7 million units

Osaka, Japan
Approx. 4.0 million units

5% (1990) = 8% (2007) =» Target 1 0% or more

Kentucky, U.S.A.

*
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j iobail EXpansion

Seamless Pipe Supply Framework for the World’s OQil and Gas Projects T
. i
.. . : ‘
[} -
[ ]
° ’ % ’ AE*
o - Supply customers
< worldwide from Japan
ey
Joint venture in Brazif v
Supply customers in & - .
North America, West Africa /.~ ’
and Middle East from Brazil = ¢ - .
# Ongoing drilling projects ¢
VAM® threading service centers: 140

(Case 2) Seamless Pipe Project in Brazil Seamless Pipe Joint Venture in Brazil:

Global supply framework will complete to put Each brings complementary competence.
us on the top of the world.

Seamiess pipe for drilling in oil and gas development <> SUMITOMD METALS | [Sumitomo Corporation
projects is called OCTG (Oil Country Tubular Goods.} Manufacturing technology. quatity cantrol Glabal sales network

This is one of Sumitomo Metals' most competitive prod-
ucts. In July 2007, we established a joint venture with {% K83 Brazil
Vallourec of France through its group company (Vallourec) to Vallouree & Sumitomo Tubos do Brasit
build an integrated steel plant to produce high-grade Cutting-edge seamless pipe manulacturing facility
seamiess pipe.

We have decided to build the plant in Brazil because it
will serve as a good access point to growing markets in

‘Manufacturing-related
infrastructure
{raitway, ports, etc.)

*Access to growth markets

North America, West Africa, and the Middle East. In ‘.
addition, Brazil has some advantages in procuring iron ore vallourec

. B . Over 50 years of experience
and other raw materials and in terms of railway, ports, and in the pipe business in Brazil

other infrastructure. Leveraging Vallourec's long experience
in Brazil, Sumitomo Corporation's sales strength, and
Sumitomo Metals' manufacturing technologies, we will
build the best production facility for seamless pipe to be
found anywhere. We and Vallourec have been cooperating
for over 30 years in developing VAM®, premium joints
that connect pipes. We are the ideal partners and enjoy
mutual trust.

Sumitomo Metals and Vallourec have agreed to manu-
facture the optimal volume of 600,000 tons of seamless
pipe and sell 300,000 tons each. This is an ideal form of
joint venture that minimizes investment risks. For
Sumitomo Metals, this business will complete our global
supply system that will have bases in Japan and Brazil.

ﬁ Sumitoma Metal Industries,Lid.



.. Steel Sheet Joifit Vetiture in Vietnam,

tecoe, oo WithChina teel
Lo, teost
0==o /]

acﬂ°o oo -~
i=1=05S Do 7
CPno? -

Kashima

/Wakayama
P o stab
China Stee| 9kt~
;
_.*"Hot coif
P
tw Vietnam Project |
TP .

(Case 3) Steel Sheet Joint Venture in Vietham,
with China Steel

Expansion ahead in the ASEAN market with
an ideal partner

Sumitomo Metals and China Steel Corporation (CSC) of
Taiwan will form a joint venture in Vietnam to produce and
sell steel sheets. This will be a base for production and
sales of cold-rolled, surface-treated, and electromag-
netic steel sheet in ASEAN countries, that have high
growth potential. We aim to commence operation of the
plant at the beginning of 2012. China Steel has been our
partner since our collaboration in upstream operation
began at the Wakayama Stee! Works in 2003. The new
venture will target sales to Japanese customers and
customers of China Steel, minimizing business risks.

£y,
Technical Assistance to Bhushan Steel’s
Orissa Bygféct in India

(Case 4) Providing Technical Assistance to
Bhushan Steel’s Orissa Project in India

Strengthening ties with a partner in a growth
market

Bhushan Steel Limited is our customer and is in the
steel sheet business in New Delhi and Mumbai, India.
They are currently constructing an integrated steel
works in the State of Orissa. We have agreed with
Bhushan to participate in this business and to provide
technical assistance. With the possibility of equity partic-
ipation in mind as a means of further strengthening our
partnership, we aim to raise our presence in the Indian
market which has huge potential for our products.

3
e

AL
. ?\”D{('H!T
w - -
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I Rreview or Operations

Pipe & Tube

Products Appiicaiion '

Manufacturing process

Rallway, Automotive, Machlnery Parts & Other Steel

Products

Manufacturing process Appiication

—_ ——— e e —

[ Sales Composition by Region: Overseas sales ratio has increased.
| Sales
¥1 744. 5 biliion

Qverseas sales ratio

41%

Overseas sales ratio - i
26% ASla" 17%

NETE]

74%

| 02 07 (FY)
¢ *China, South Kerea, Southeast Asia, the Middle and Near East
',._,_,_,_‘,

Sumitome Metal Industries, Lid.




The Company’s core praducts are tubes and pipes used for Share of Total Sales  NeiSales(¥bition) Operating Margin (%)
energy development and transportation. Sumitomo Metals Ez '
ranks top in the world in technical development capability,

600
product quality, and diverse product offering. We have an 500
unparalleled presence in the glcbal high-end seamless ‘3’2
pipe market. We are currently building a seamless pipe 200 —
manufacturing base in Brazil to enhance Sumitomo Moo—

Metals' global supply system.

02 03 D4 05 06 07 (PN

Share of Total Sales  weisalos(¥billion) Oparating Margln (%)

:
' Production is mainly focused on steel sheets for automotive
|

400
applications, stee! plates for the energy and shipbuilding | 700 .
industries, steel beams for construction, and titanium i :z
| products. Our business is closely tied to the needs of our ! oo
customers, with whom we have built a long-term relationship l 300
of trust. We are promoting the expansion in overseas markets b 200
where we intend to raise our presence. Lfo_

—

Sumitomo Metals has a dominant presence supported by
o . Share of Total Sales et Sclos(Vbinlon} Operating Margln (%)
distinctive products. These include wheels and axles for | as0

rofling stock, in which we command a 100% market share in
Japan, and automotive forged crankshafts, in which our 18% 250
global share is approximately 8%. Our subsidiaries are
focusing on developing their own distinctive products:
Sumitomo Metals (Kokura), Ltd. focuses on specialty steel
bars and wire rods and Sumitomo Metals (Nacetsu), Ltd. on

. . . 02 03 04 05 06 07 (Fv
stainless precision rolled strips.

L ]

~ Sales Composition by Business Segment : Share of pipe & tube business has risen.

Sales
¥1,744.5 billion Ve 7%

Sales
¥1,224.6 billion . _ J6%

; Railway, Automotive, Other* 22%

Machinery Parts 15% — N : SO

& Other Steel Steel Sheet, Plate, Titanium &30 S . :
Structural Ste

Pipe & Tube 19%
; 02 07 {FY) %
‘ * Eniirleering, electronics, others }
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lPipe & Tube Business

Our products are mainly used in the energy sector and for automobile manufacturing.
Mainline seamless pipe products are used in natural gas development and high-efficiency
power generation plants, thereby contributing to the prevention of global warming.

By leveraging our technological capabilities, we will make our world-leading product line-
up even more distinctive to create enhanced value.

Share of Total Sales
et Sales (v bilion)  Operating Margin (%)

Sales Composition by Product
(Value base)

High-Share Products

High-allay OCTG

Q04

Stainless steel pipe
for ultra super critscal boilers
for thermal power generation

World

80«

5G tube
for nuclear power plant boilers

33%

Large-diameter
walded steel pipe

Demand growth and distinctive products lead
to sustained high growth and high margins
Sales grew by 10.3% year on year to ¥674.5 billion in
fiscal 2007. Backed by worldwide energy demand
growth, segment sales have expanded significantly,
with growth averaging 22% p.a. in the past five years
(excluding the impact of changes in the scope of business.)
The operating margin was 22.7% in fiscal 2007, similar to
levels in the previous two years. We attribute the seg-
ment’'s margin expansion from 6.4% in 2002 to a signifi-
cant improvement in the supply/demand balance and
our international competitiveness. We expect to keep
growing, against the backdrop of expanding medium-
term energy demand and increasing awareness of envi-
ronmental protection.

Value Creatio

e

e

Strategies by product

[Seamless pipe]

We will accelerate distinctiveness in high-end
seamless pipe used in oil and natural gas
development and thermal power and nuclear
power development.

World demand for oil, natural gas, coal, and other energy
sources is expected to increase by about 2% a year in the
medium-term. This signifies that global demand for oii
well tubular will reach around 10 million tons a year in
2015. While approximately 70% of the market is for
commodity-grade products, our business domains
account for the remaining 30% of the market, with high-
end products representing over 20% and super high-
end products a little less than 10%. The latter two cate-

n Model

Enhancement of

|
| : Market environment Sumitomo Metals’ Strategies :
|

" Value creation f"_"' Worldwide demand i+}
| J : expansion

[ —— Ve L - _-

Higher-level
¥ quality requirements

Acceleration of

it sales and

4

distinctiveness

manufacturing networks

Enhancement of sales and manufacturing networks

\ ] Acceleration of distinctiveness

* Most advanced technology in the world
* Global supply system

* Best produ-ct fline-up in the world {(inctuding joint venture in Brazil) 1
¢ Relationship of trust with customers |

|

i Pipe & tube
| business
]

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid.



gories represent 30% of the OCTG (Oil Country Tubular
Goods) market in volume but approximately half of the
market in terms of value, thanks to high pricing. We
estimate that our sales can grow by around 4-10% a
year in these categories, depending on the type of prod-
ucts. We have invested in the expansion of manufacturing
capacity for super high-end oil well tubular, and operation
started at the end of June 2008.

In addition to our technological edge and relationships
based on trust with customers, Sumitomo Mstals' core
competence in the OCTG market includes VAM®, premi-
um joints that connect pipes. The capability to manu-
facture and develop high-quality pipe joints is extremely
important, as they are used to connect cil well tubes at a
depth of several thousand meters below ground.
Sumitormo Metals co-developed VAM® with Vallourec,
and VAM® holds approximately 40% of the world market
for premium joints.

We have invested in capacity expansion for
high-grade pipes and tubes used in boilers
for power generation, where we claim a domi-
nant market share.

Pipes and tubes for boilers are another strategic area
for us. In recent years, there has been a rise in con-
struction of coal-fired power plants, where ultra super
critical operations have become the mainstay, since
they are most efficient in power generation and emit the
least volume of CO2. Sumitomo Metals has an 80%
global share in super high-end boiler tubes and pipes,
which can withstand ultra super critical conditions, We
invested ¥6.5 billion in total and increased production
capacity by 50% to 18,000 tons, primarily at the Steel

Growing Business Opportunities: !
Worldwide energy demand !

-
|

Million TGE
(tons of oit equivalent) p.a.
16,000 Corres-
| ponding .
i 14,000 other Products .
% 12,000 O ree"— SG tube ;
|1 _ baler
‘ 0,000 coal — T
8,000 ! e
| natural | Séam.ess
C6,000 gas pipe |
|
large-
lf 4,000 diameter
| 2,000 oil welded

steel pipe
0 |
| 1980 2000 2005 2007 2015 (Yeas) |

:LSuurce: IEA, World Energy Cutlack 2007

Tube Works (Amagasaki,} from October 2007.

[Large-diameter welded steel pipe]

In large-diameter welded steel pipe, for which
supply/demand is tight, we will expand mass
production capacity of ultra high-strength line
pipe.

Responding to growing demand for ultra high-strength
line pipe that enables high-pressure, highly-efficient opera-
tion of pipelines and a reduction in construction costs, we are
investing ¥10 billion in total for facility expansion mainly at
the Kashima Steel Works. Facility expansion work is cur-
rently in progress, and completion is due in fiscal 2010,

Structure of Qil Well Tubular Market :

High-end products are main component on value basis.
{Projected Market in 2015)

General products

Super
high-end

High-end

Value
Note: Company estimates

Quantity

E

J
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j oteel Sheet, Plate, Titanium & Structural Steel Business

We are focusing on our distinctive products, such as steet sheets for automobile body
parts and electric products as well as steel plates for energy-related applications
such as marine rigs (offshore structures) and for the shipbuilding industry, large
shaped steel beams, and titanium sheets for aircraft. We are concentrating on areas that
are less sensitive to fluctuation in economic conditions.

Share of Total Sales
Met .:nlesj ¥ biflion) Opaﬂllng  Margin (% (%)

/’”' Eﬁ

'503
;400

|

' 300

! 200

" 100
— :

Sustained medium- and long-term growth trend
but increasing impact of rising costs in short term
Against the backdrop of global market growth driven by
economic development in emerging markets, sales
increased by 9.2% from the previous year to ¥629.1 billion
in fiscal 2007. The segment's average annual growth
rate during the past five years {excluding the impact of
changes in the scope of business) was 4%, Our operating
margin, however, decreased for the second consecutive
year to 11.4%. Major reasons were a delay in improving
product selling prices to match rising freight and cther
costs and an increase in the depreciation burden associ-
ated with investments in blast furnace, Independent
Power Producers (IPPs,) and other businesses. In this
segment, we are aiming for siable and sustained growth by
focusing on customers with whom we have relation-

{Value base)
Titanium sheets, IPP and others

Steel beams
far construction materials arket

Sales Composition by Product Customer Penetration Ratio &
High-Share Products

Steel sheet busingss: 8]
Customer penetration ratio> %

Steel plates for penstocks 40
with over 590MPa strength

Steel
World
sheets Share

Steel 51%
plates

Pura titanium sheet Apprax.
for airgraft 30%

K= Compamy et o

*Customer Penetration Rstio indicxios the percentago of

sales tonnege of products where we ara the number ora or

number two supplicr to cuctomers. It 13 a substitute for our
share,

ships of trust based on excellent quality and service.
Our profits may deteriorate in the short term at the time of
cost increases. However, we will not attempt to seek
short-term profit improvement by shifting to the strategy of
increasing the sales ratio for commodity-grade prod-
ucts, for which prices can be raised immediately. Cur
focus on iong-term value creation will thus remain
unchanged. On a five-year basis, our operating margin has
significantty improved from 5.8% in fiscal 2002 to
11.4% in fiscal 2007. We will endeavor to create an
earnings structure that is more resilient to the downside.

Strategies by product

[Steel sheets]

We are focusing on high-grade steel sheets
for automobiles and electric appliances. We

| Value Creation Model

* - Worldwide demand
Value creatlon = expansion

) l Cuslomers[wnh long-term contracts
(automotwe electric)

Steel Sheet,
Plate, Titanium &
Structural Steel

| Buslness

* High quality and
cost competitiveness
Investment and pursuit of full
capacity utilization concept

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Ltd.

Market en\nronment Sumitomo Metals’ Strategies
Customers with
‘+ long-term contracts fa g Noe:atl:;t;;cz’m\er
(automaotive, electric)
Expansion into overseas
No.1 customer evaluation growth markets

Expansion into

overseas growth
markets

. Relatlonshlps of trust
with customers
Provida quality, timely delivery,
servnce and soluuons

focused on growth markets,
close location to customers.

f * Overseas expansmn
L)
l




will gain customer satisfaction by making
proposals concerning diverse issues extending
from component processing to the structure of
customers' end products.

We assign utmost importance to building relationships
of trust with customers. We are engaged not only in ser-
vices related to product sales but also making proposals
for materials and components, “before services” that
even involve proposals regarding the structure of final
products, and “after services” to receive customer feed-
back on products after delivery. Through these services,
we aim to strengthen our relationships based on sharing
technologies and trust with customers. As a part of
“before services,” we have introduced a system whereby
“visiting engineers” are dispatched to customers’ sites, and
work closely with our product development, manufac-
turing, sales, and engineering teams. Also, in “after ser-
vices,” we have pioneered the industry with a system
that entails sending a roving quality squad to the manu-
facturing floor of customers’ sites, which enables a sys-
tematic approach to obtain feedback on the use of our
products. These efforts represent our campaign for
Number One customer. evaluation. We are also making
proactive investments to respond to customers’ quality
requirements. A good example is our world’'s largest
drop-weight test machine, a type of crash performance
test device especially valuable for studying the strength of
automotive vehicle structure.

[Steel plates]

We will accelerate distinctiveness by concen-
trating on the energy field.

In November 2007, our investment program for a 5%
capacity expansion in high-end steel plates was com-

- e e ——

' Sales Structure of Steel Srheets {volume}):
Ratio of long-term transactions is rising

Qther
32%

Long-term stable
transactions
for automobiles,
electric machinery,
elc.

68%
02 07 (FY)

pleted. We are competitive, both in terms of supply
capability and product quality, in high-grade steel plates
that require sophisticated combination of high-level
strength, toughness, and weldability. These products
are uged for marine rigs (offshore structures to be used for
underwater drilling of oil and gas) or penstocks, an
important component for hydroelectric power stations.
We are the world's largest supplier of such steel plates
used, for penstocks with over 590MPa strength, with an
internally-estimated 40% global market share. We are
recording steady sales to customers with whom we
have established close relationships in connection with
products such as penstocks, marine rigs, line pipes,
tanks, and ships.

[Steel beams for construction materials]
Focus on high-function steel beams

Our high-function preducts include ultra-thick H-shape
bheams, fixed outer dimension H-shape beams, light-
weight welded H-shape beams, and wide sheet piles.
We are focusing on the overseas market, where growth is
continuing, and on the domestic market, where demand is
becoming more sophisticated based on considerations of
large size, long life, earthquake resistance, and environ-
menital issues. Our emphasis is on high-function products,
where we do not compete much with Chinese and
Korean manufacturers of general products.

[Titanium sheets]

Focus on the aircraft market

We boast the top share in pure titanium sheet for air-
craft in Japan and estimate we have approximately 30% of
the world market. We are promoting a strategy to fur-
ther strengthen our position in the aircraft market.

| Customer Penetration Ratio
in Steel Sheet Business

I A/\'_\‘ '
80% - » -

Annual Report 2008




j| Railway, Automotive, Machinery Parts & Other Steel Business

Main products are wheels and axles for railway use, forged crankshafts for automobiles
and construction machinery, and high-grade specialty steel for automobhiles. Our
strengths lie in highly distinctive product line-ups, including railway wheels and axles,
where we command a 100% market share in Japan, and forged crankshafts, where our
globa!l market share is approximately 8%.

Share of Total Sales

ot Salo (¥ bilior) _Operating Margin ()
350

300

250
¢ 200

{150

Our strategy to accelerate distinctiveness
has contributed to high growth.

Sales grew by 5.9% year on year to ¥318.7 biltion in fiscal
2007. Backed by growth in automobile production and the
expansion of high-speed railways in many countries, we
have achieved a high growth rate of 11% a year on
average during the past five years. The operating margin
has also improved from 9% five years ago to 14%. In
addition to a favorable market environment, we believe that
our strategy of accelerating distinctiveness by means of
focusing on our high-value-added products has been
effective. We are currently continuing to make invest-

Sales Composition by Product

High-Share Products
(Value base)

Railway B
wheels ’
and axles - World
Share

High-speed railway wheels

Forged crankshafts 8%

Raiiway wheels and axles 100%

Raitway forged steel brake disks 2 5%

Domestic
Share

Forged
crankshaft

Large crankshafis
for trucks and buses

Noic: Company ecumatos

ments aimed at capturing medium-term growth opportu-
nities in the railway and automotive markets. We are
also striving for growth that exceeds the market growth
rate,

Strategies by product

[Railway parts]

By leveraging our dominant share and strong
track record in the Japanese market, we will
increase our share in the growing world market.
Sumitomo Metals boasts a dominant share in the
Japanese market for railway wheels and axles, and

Value Creation Model

Sumitomo Metals’ Strategies

Improvement of

1 Market environment

=| Worldwide demand |
' expansion }

T

!
Value creation |

Railway parts speeds

—

Sophistication of
" quality requirement

] . T Improvement of manufacturing
Product type ] Acceleration of distinctiveness and sales networks

* Develop products for higher operating

*® Incorporate advanced functions

manufacturing
and sales networks

+ Acceleration +
of distinctiveness

* Boost production capacity to
expand global sales

.

* Smaller, lighter products {demand shift from

-

¢ Establish and enhance global tripolar
production/sales organization

*Invest in capacity expansion
N

F

Crankshafts cast steel products to forged stee! products)
* Shorter delivery time
{ .
; Speclalty * Focus on the automotive sector
; steel bars

' and wire rods

» Strengthen responsiveness to quality issues

P S P

Sumitomo Metal Industries,lid.
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forged steel brake disks and drive units for rolling stock. We
have responded squarely to Japanese customers’
requests associated with the increasing speed of trains, qui-
eter in-car and surrounding environments, and lighter
and more reliable compeonents. Specifically, we are
atternpting to differentiate our products by developing
railcar tilting control technology, rocking prevention and
control technology, and products such as ring damped
wheels and lightweight wheels.

Supported by proven quality and reliability, we are
increasing overseas sales. Qur share of the worldwide
forged wheel market is approximately 7% but in the
wheel market for high-speed (230 km per hour or more)
trains that require high quality, we rank Number One in
quality and volume with an approximate 30% share in
terms of outstanding number of rolling stock of high-
speed trains.

To better establish and protect our position and grow
further, we invested ¥2.0 billion in our Osaka Steel
Works to boost its wheel output capacity by 20%, from
200,000 units a year to 240,000 units. It began operating
at full capacity in March 2008.

[Forged crankshafts for automobiles]
We will strengthen the global tripolar supply
system to expand market share
Two different types of material can be used for crank-
shafts. One is forged steel and the other is cast ductile
iron. Today there is a shift in demand from cast crank-
shafts to forged crankshafts due to their more compact
dimensions, better power output, and lighter weight
lower fuel consumption). We aim to achieve sales growth
that exceeds the market average, by leveraging our tech-
nologies in forging and focusing on this trend.

In addition to our advanced product design capability,
we also have the advantage of an |ntegrated manufactur—
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ing system extending from materials to forging, heat
treatment, and finishing. This enables us to respond to all
the needs of customers while realizing short delivery
times.

Currently, we are adding new production lines in China
and the U.S. to expand our share of the global market.
Together with the Osaka Steel Works, our total annual
capacity on a tripolar basis (Japan, U.S., and China} will
increase by 33% to 8.8 million units and give us the
potential to capture more than 10% of the globat market, up
from the present 8%.

Furthermare, we are considering building another pro-
duction base in Asia. In the world’'s growing market for
crankshafts, our target is to increase our production
capacity to 10 million units {equivalent to a 13% global
share) by 2015.

[Specialty steel bars and wire rods]

We will ensure distinctiveness by improving
quality through investments aimed at the inno-
vation of steelmaking processes.

Approximately 90% of our specialty steel bars and wire
rods are used by the automotive sector. Our main plant,
Sumitomo Metals (Kokura), Ltd., is making capital
expenditures to substantially improve steelmaking
processes, completion of which is due at the end of fiscal
2009. As a result of this investment, we will outclass
competitors in terms of quality and productivity. We will
also expand corporate value by accelerating distinctive-
ness and improving profitability.

[Stainless steel]

Our strength lies in materials for gaskets for automobile
engines and stainless steel beams for construction. We
intend to expand sales by actively working to developing
types of steel and apphcahons for them.
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We at Sumitomo Metals aim at raising corporate value with sustained growth that bal-

ances quality and scale, and while adhering to “Sumitomo's Business Spirit” and respecting
Sumitomo Metals’ history in manufacturing.

Resources that drive creation and growth of corporate value include “intangible assets” such
as customer assets, human assets, technology assets, and organizational assets in addition
to “tangible assets” such as physical assets and financial assets. We at Sumitomo Metals
strive to grow both types of assets in order to improve and maximize corporate value.
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Assets that Raise Corporate Value

[ ] intangible assets /\

Customers

[:] Tangible assets

Enhance Intangible Assets

Employees Technology

Solid Operating Base

More than 100 years of
Manufacturing Experience
Organlzatlon
Sumitomo’s Business Spirit
refined over 400 years
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g Lustomer ASSE1S. Seeking the Number One Position In
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Sumitomo Metals’ competitiveness is proven by the
high evaluations given by, and the trust of, its cus-
tomers. The Company seeks to raise its corporate
value by producing the highest quality steel for cus-
e tomers, and by supplying solutions to issues that go
beyond the work of merely selling steel.

Whatever the subject, explain patiently, over and over again (to our customers.)
Masatomo Sumitomo (1585-1652), founding father of the House of Sumitomo,

circa 1650 in a letter addressed to a retainer.

Always persist in putting the interests of customers before anything else.
When a problem arises, please try to see things from their point of view first.
Hosai Hyuga, President of Sumitomo Metals, in an appointment speech in 1962,

Becoming “Number One” in customer evaluation
Sumitomo Metals assigns great importance to cus-
tomers who evaluate highly the quality of our products and
our services, and who have long-term relationships built on
trust with us. Some of these customers may not bring us
a high margin of profit initially but they yield high profits for
us over the medium to long term. In our steel sheet
business, we aim to be number one or number two, and
indispensable, as a supplier to users of specific prod-
ucts. We define the ratio of sales of which we are the
number one or number two supplier to the customer as our
“Customer Penetration Ratio,” and we strive to maintain
and improve this ratio.

Supplying solutions to problems

We seek to be indispensabie to our customers as a
source of greater corporate value for those customers. In
that sense, we are not satisfied to build a simple refation-
ship with our customers that is based merely on selling and
purchasing steel. What we are doing to deserve a
Number One rating by our customers is to contribute to all
of their steel-related processes, from the stage of devel-
opment of their products through the development of
steei and subseguent production, processing and
inventory warehousing - all that is needed for their man-
ufacture of final products.

Our Steel Business Model: Deep involvement in assisting customers

]
Design &
development
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Purchasing

business center

f Sumitomo Metals’

Before service
target model e Sales

Processing

Visit Roving
-

After service

i
Paris © Ed
manufacturing antita 4 Profit >

Beyond selling our products,
we assist customers in their business activities.

Customers’
business

Purchasing

»
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General
model
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Customer Evaluation

“Before Service” Sumitomo Metals sends its own
engineers to work with the customer’s staff on product
design and development. The visiting engineers are
supported not only by our development force but also
by our manufacturing, sales, and technical departments to
assist the customer. Our intention in thus assisting cus-
tomers before they start production using our materials is
to share and thereby make the most of our technology on
behalf of our customers, and build a solid foundation of
mutual trust and sharing of techniques. We are the first
company to provide this kind of “Before service” that
includes organizational support. We are assisting major
automotive customers by providing this service. The
application technology that will be associated with the
specific steel materials the customer intends to use is
critically important. Sumitomo Metals is recognized as
being in the top class regarding application technology for
steel for automobile manufacturers.

Roving Quality Squad

“After Service” Part of our customer support
scheme is what our “Roving Quality Squad” does.
Besides arranging for our marketing persons to visit
customers’ production facilities, we send veterans in
manufacturing to the point where our materials are
being made into final products; they pay visits on a regu-
lar, scheduled basis, and provide on-the-spot advice
when needed. We are assisting around 70% of our steel
sheet customers by providing this service. This manner of
working so closely with customers is part of the
Sumitomo Metals corporate culture; it is a tradition with us.

We seek to forge lasting, close relationships with our
customers by doing “something special” that goes
beyond merely selling our products. And by providing
solutions to customers, and becoming indispensable
partners in increasing their corporate value, we cultivate
our customers as valuable assets.

“SMICAT” We established Sumitomo Metal Industries’
Center of Application Technology for Customers (SMI-
CAT) to provide solutions for customer needs by leverag-
ing the integrated technological abilities of Sumitomo
Metals and its Group companies. \Using processing,
evaluation, simulation and other element technologies
accumulated within the Sumitomo Metals Group, SMI-
CAT has been developing steel products that meet specific
customer requirements.

Recent Major Awards and Commendations from Customers

Year of award  Customer Industry Award name Evaluated points for award
Toyota Motar Kyushu, Ing, Automotive Excelient Quality Award Quality of automotive steel shaets
TTX Company (L.5.) Railway Excelian! Supplier Quality, cost, and delivery of raitway wheels
RasGas Company Limited (Qatar) Energy Trophy sward CQuality and detivery of high-alloy OCTG
Toyota Motor Corporation Construction Quality Award far Toyota Housing Corparation  Guality, cost, and delivery of lightweight wefded H-beams
DENSO Corporation Automotive Global Supplier Contribution Awsrd Delivery of bar-in-coils in North Amerlca
Daihatsu Motor Co., Ltd. Autemotive Technoclogy Award in loping high-tansile strength sloel sheet welding simulation
m&:‘," Industries Co., Lid. Energy Gommemorativa gift Quality and delivery of ttesl piates for offshore structures

Flacal 2007 Robroy Industries (U.5.} Canstruction Commemorative gift ay and ity of gatvanized steel conduit tubes
Mitsubishl Heavy Industries, Ltd. Ensrgy Letter of Appreclation Stabls supply of steel materiats for storage containers of spent nuciear tusl
Shafl EPA {Singapore) Energy Supplier of Year CQuality, delivery of OCTG
Toyota Motor Corporation Automative Letter of Appraciation Achievemant of annual targel in quatity control activity of bans and wire rods
Toyota Motor Corporation Auvtomotive Excelient Quality Award Two consecutive years of zero quality claims for hars and wire rods
JTEKT Corperation Aytomotive Excelient Quality Award Three consecutive yaars of zero quality claims for bars and wira rods
Toyota Motor Corporation Automotive Latter of Appraciation Achievernent of quality target for automolive steel sheets
PPL Shipyard Pte. Ltd. {Singapore} Energy Commemoarative gift Development of stoel plates for offshore structures
Mitsubisti Blactric Corparation Electric Commemorative gift Delivery of steel shoots
Toyota Motar Kyushu, Inc. Automotive Lexus Quality Award Quality improvement of autarnotive steel shoets
Toyota Motor Corporation Automotive Leatter of Appreciation Achipvemnent of quality target for automativa staal sheets

Fiacal 2008 Toyota Motor Colporation Canstruction Quality Award far Toyota Housing Corperation  Quality, cost, and deiivery of ightweight weldsd H-beams
Mitsubishl Heavy Industries, Ltd, g:j&vr;g‘;"' Special Award Technology. quality, delivery, and cost in manutacturing
Keppel FELS Ltd. (Singapore} Ensrgy Commemorative gift Stable supply of steal plates for offshore structures
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j Human Assets: The Individual Employee is The Basic Unit

_ g We are making efforts to support our employees
e o gain greater job satisfaction to work,
“ so that they take pride in,
- and are dedicated to,
T what they do on the job.

Sumitomo shall appoint capable persons, whether young or old.

Saihei Hirose, First Director-General of Sumitomo.

The most important assignment one has is to find a successor and to determine
when to hand over the work. This is the greatest task of all in our work.

Teigo Iba, Second Director-General of Sumitomo.

Overlooking the best talent is an eternal loss that is immeasurable.
{Said in response to his subordinate’s comments regarding taking too much time in hiring activities)

Masaya Suzuki, Third Director-General of Sumitomo.

Don’t concentrate on money-making. First you have to become a respectable person.

Masatsune Ogura, Sixth Director-General of Sumitomo.

Handing down knowhow and techniques

The Sumitomo Metals Group had more than 39,000
employees at the end of fiscal 1999, and structural
reforms since then have resulted in having about 25,000
employees at the end of fiscal 2003, Since 2003 we
have continued to improve our sales per employee while
also increasing our sales. The two major issues we
encounter today are an imbalance in the age structure of
our workforce, this resulting from a temporary freeze on
new hiring, and the challenge of how to hand down
knowhow and techniques to younger employees.

On the workshop flocr, it is an absolute necessity that
our workers be equipped with advanced, specialized
knowledge and rich experience, so that they can maintain
quality standards and keep productivity high. At
Sumitomo Metals, around half of the employees at pro-
duction sites are veterans aged over 50; in the near
future, these workers will retire. Therefore, we have a
major challenge in assuring that the knowledge and
experience that has been accumulated over the dura-
tion of a long career is transmitted to the next generation
of our employees.

To cope with this, we have developed methods to
quantify the levels of skills employees should have for
each position. We have tabulated the values work site
by work site and used the results to draw a Work Site Skill

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid.
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Map. Making our requirements visible in this way will
facilitate planning and implementing the development of
our human resources.



. Making Up Sumitomo Metals

Improve total skill levels of workgroups

We have been rehiring retirees to train younger employees,
so that skills are retained and accumulated within the
Company. We also engage in mid-career hiring, in addition
to hiring new graduates, as a means of raising skill ievels
and improving the age structure of our workforce.

Improve total skill levels of individuals
Educational programs are in use at alt levels of the
Company, from the newly hired schoo! graduates to top
management. At the Kashima Human Resources Development
Center, for example, we also conduct specialized training
in factory automation technology, process control,
hydraulics, and other technical subjects.

A start-up of new equipment is an opportunity to raise the
abilities of young engineers and production managers. The
Company is presently engaged in starting new production
equipment at a number of sites. By deploying some of our
younger employees there we are preparing them for roles in
contributing to the medium- to long-term growth of the
Company. When we send personnel to the start-up of new
equipment, we are using that opportunity to develop per-
sonnel with managerial capabilities on a global basis.

Safety and Health

Safety is a fundamental element of management at
Sumitomo Metals. We have clearly stated our policy for
safety and health management policy, and have created
arrangements to continucusly raise our standards for
safety and health management.

Sumitomo Metals was the first to introduce Kiken
Yochi (KY; risk assessment) activities, which predict
latent risks before operations take place and minimize
operational risks, as well as systematic, hands-on safety
training. These activities have now become widespread
among many companies in Japan. We will continue to
raise the level of our safety and health management
standards, and to contribute to a higher level of safety and
health management in Japanese industry as a whole.

We are also promoting health preservation programs for
our employees, including a mental health care program.
Welfare benefit programs have been improved in order to
support an employee lifestyle that balances work and
private life.

Human rights, and employment of the
disadvantaged

Sumitomo Metals is pledged to respect basic human
rights, to give due attention to the rights of workers, and to

"7 7 7 simulation of Total Skill Levels
at the Kashima Steel Works
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‘Years of continuous '
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‘Sumitomo i\llétals Basic-Polic“y for Safet_y and l-iealth‘,
[Principles) ‘

1. To ensure the safety and health of employees that work in the
Sumitome Metals Group is the basis of development for the |
Company's business.

2. The Company shall continuously endeavor to ensure the safety |
and health of its employees in Sumitomo's Business Spirit of
“respact for peopls,” in accordance with the Company’s policy
— “Sumitomo Metals treasures people and technologies”— |
and in the way of thinking —“safety is the origin of the employees’
welfare and the basis for any management”—that has been
the long-cherished guideline for the Company's safety and
health management.

3. The Company shall continue to contribute to society through
safety and health, taking pride in a history in which the
Company has played an advanced role in Japan's safety and
health measures.

4, Continuous improvement resutting in the safety and haalth of the
Sumitomo Metals Group shall be a universal target.

eliminate the use of forced and child {abor. Qur Group
remains unified in its dedication to eliminating discrimi-
nation in Japan, having adopted this policy as early as
1979. As we have actively employed disadvantaged
persons, their ratic to all our employees exceeds the
requirement imposed by law.

Annual Report 2008 [E5]










j 'echnology Assets: Driver to Accelerate Distinctiveness

T s Sumitomo Metals' technology development contributes to the improvement of
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corporate value, while focusing on satisfying customers’ needs and preserving
the global environment.

Our technology development, manufacturing, and sales divisions operate in an
integrated manner, and R&D resources are allocated intensively to our
strong areas. This strategy has been highly effective as a driver to accelerate
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our distinctiveness.

Technology development that addresses customer needs :

Ensuring our leading reputation among customers

Enhan
Technology the p;'nonﬁgme
deveIo menl, <1 sieel materials
manufe?cluring and i Enhance the performance
, Enhance refationships . of steel materials and

sales forces operale in based on trust Provide ; .
an integrated manner with customers selutio provide customer-centric

and R&D is tailored to application technologies
customer needs and solutions
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Provide application
technologies

Highly-evaluated technology

Sumitomo Metals has received various awards for its technology and development
from institutions and customers in the past five years.

National Commendation
for Invention,
Invention Prize {2007)

Devefopment of mold flux for
high-speed continuous
casting

Monodzukuri Nippon
Grand Award/Prime
Minister's Award (2007)
For the invention of manufacturing
mathod of high-quality steel plates
using nano-size particies,

Okochi Memorial Grand
Production Prize (2006)

New-genaration Yechnologies that realize
high-quality, high-efficiency and
environmaentally friendiy steel making process

Nikkei Production
Grand Prize (2007)

Tha longest campaign life of
Wakayarna No.4 Blast Furnace

Blast furnace

E Phosphorus
y L removal furnace

¥
Converter RH furnace

(secaondary refining)

@W*

. Hallway wheels and axles

® Steam genarator tibe
for nuclear powef generation

. \/ /
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Accelerating distinctiveness,

R&D on high-end products

Enhance areas of strength

&

» Concentrated allocation of researchers, increase in speed

» Strategic focus on core technologies

+ More use and application of external research resources

Area of strength

Energy

Area of strength

Automobiles

Environmentally-friendly
technology development

The Corporate Research &
Development Laboratories
allocate approximately 80% of

their R&D expenditure (approx.

¥14 billion) to areas related to
global environmental
preservation.

+Eco-friendly products
-Energy-saving processes

Approx. 8 0 %

Seamless pipe Seamless pipe

Qkochi Memorial Production
Prize (2003)
National Commendation

for Invention/
The Prize of the Minister

of Economy (2005)

Deavelopment of manufacturing
technology 1or new-generation,
medium-sized seamiess pipe

—

Steel sheet
Automohile steel sheet

Hot-dip galvanizing

@ Steel sheet for hot-press use
. Malenals for automotive crankshaits

/7

@ Titanium-made cathode drum
for producmg'“etectrolyuo copper foil

Nationat Commendation for
Invention, Imperial Invention
Prize (2008)

Development of super-high strength

low-alloy steel oil country tubular
goods (OCTG) for sour service

Pipe & Tube Business’ Operating Margin

Ichimura Industrial Prize (2005)

Development of processing technology
to promote the generation of protective
rust for weatherproaf steel plate

Ichimura Industrial Prize (2007)

Non-oriented electromagnetic steel
sheet for high-afficiency motors

0 5 10 15

Steel Sheet, Plate, Titanium & Structual
Steel Business' Operating Margin

2002
2007

0 5 10

Steel sheet application
technology
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Crash bOX

@ Black Zn -Ni coated steel sheets

@ Railway.train gear units
£ ~

N
SIS

*3 CVT : Continuously Variable Transmission

Award for Technology (2006)

High-tensile welding simulation

Award for Technolegy Development (2005)
“Dr, STAMP™ *1

Award for Technology Development (2004)
New-type crash box

Award for Technology Development (2004)
Light-weight low-cost center pillar

20 25{(%)

15(%)

*1 Dr, STAMP: New frictional 1esting method for stamping formandlity

. Bogle trucks for rallways

DRV

v
o

L Steel plates for penstocks of
SQOMBa strength and over

@ High“carbonsteé! sheets
for CVT*a belt elements
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1ecnnology Assetls

Recent Awards Won for Important R&D Accomplishments

Upstream processes

The longest campaign life of
Wakayama No.4 Blast Furnace
Nikkei Production Grand Prize (2007)

Developed inventive technology to overcome numerous challenges
in nonstop operation of blast furnaces

b

Achieved the world record for
duration of operation (26 years).*

(The initia! operation period of 7 years was expected when

the furnace began operation on February 23, 1982.}
*Based on Company research.
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For the invention of manufacturing method
of high quality steel plates using nano-size particles.

Monodzukuri Nippon Grand Award/Prime Minister's Award (2007)
Innovative slab-cooling continuous casting*1 technologies : Surface Structure Contro! Cooling (SSC) method

e

Established technology to prevent transverse cracking
of high-grade steel plates caused by high-temperature embrittiement
(Elimination of inspection and conditioning process has led to higher productivity and energy efficiency)

Immediately after the slab leaves the mold, its surface is cooled rapidly (within about one minute) to about 800 degrees
Celsius. Next, the heat is transferred from the inside, which then makes the surface microstructure less prone to crack,
thanks to precipication of nano-size minute particles.
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*1 The process of manufacturing slab, parent material of rofled products, by solidifying molten steel.
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Energy Area

Development of super-high strength low-alloy steel
oil country tubular goods {OCTG) for sour service

National Commendation for Invention, Imperial Invention Prize (2008)
Established new material design method that provides high-strength and improved sour resistance for QCTG™1
(1) Control forms of non-metallic inclusions, {2) reduce transfer density within the steel, (3) control forms of deposits (carbide)

b

Succeeded in yielding as high as 125ksi in OCTG for sour service
< Historical record was 110ksi (758MPa)>

*1 In highly-corrosive oil wells containing high levels of hydrogen sulfide, embrittternent caused by the absorption of hydrogen sul-
fide in steel, called sulfide stress cracking (SSC), can occur.

i Crude oil layer 1,000~4,000m

.
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Naturallgas)islajcleanegenergyisource [eSSIC 24
Inkthe dr?lling ficldSKthe, deepge*r the Well morelc ontosivelisitsienvironmenta?
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Naturallgas]istextractedliromldeep¥highlyzcorrosivel t
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SumitomojMetalslisithelworidisfonlylsuppliedof{lOCliGifordoiljwelisthigh
hydrogenjsulfidejwithlsteelktubesfasihighaskii25ksil{862MRa)linlstrength

*2 Hydrogen suffide partial pressure of approximately 0.03 atmosphere

R&D Expenses, Technology and Quality Awards,

and Commendations from Customers

R&D Expens Number of Technology and Quality Awards,
(¥tstion) penses and Commendations from Customers
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Benefits of Inheriting “Sumitomo’s Business Spirit” and “Sumitomo Metals’ History in Manufacturing”
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At Sumitomo Metals, we count our corporate culture,
management philosophy, and functional organization as
major components of what we call our organizational
assets that contribute to our corporate value.

The most important organizational assets are
Sumitomo’s Business Spirit, which has evolved and
been refined over the span of 400 years, and Sumitomo
Metals’ history in manufacturing, which has a record

of accomplishment that is 100 years old.

Sumitomo’s Business Spirit is in our corporate
DNA that is passed on to future generations

The first page in the history of the Sumitomo Group is
devoted to when Masatomo Sumitomo opened his own
business, in Kyoto in the 1620s. As a member of the
Sumitomo Group, we have inherited the original entre-

preneurship from that time, and much more derived
from that and add to it over the past 400 years.
Surnitomo’s Business Spirit, embodying the principles
of the first Sumitomo business, includes elements of
corporate governance, compliance, risk management,
and corporate social responsibility.

Sumitomo’s Business Spirit

Whenever we launched a new business, | have always thought about
whether it was ethical conduct or not. That was exactly why things
worked out well. | urge my junior people to also stick to this principle.

|

i

Masatsune Ogura, Sixth Director-General of Sumitomo, in a resignation address in 1941, |
|

i

l

A man of noble character esteems wealth, and is scrupulous
in seeking the way to acquire it.

Personal motto of Teige I1ba, appointed Second Director-General of Sumitomo in 1900.

Sumitomo shall manage its activities with foresight and flexibility
in order to cope effectively with the changing times.

Under no circumstances, however, shall it pursue easy gains

or act imprudently.

Business Principles from the Rules Governing the House of Sumitomoe, 1891.

Sumitomo’s businesses must benefit not only Sumitomo itself
but the nation and society as well.

Teigo Iba, Second Director-General of Sumitomo, in an appointment speech in 1900.

Sumitomo Metal Industries,lid.




I Organizational ASSelS: our Approach to Corporate Governance

Sumitomo’s Business Spirit and governance
Sumitomo Metals, as a member of the Sumitomo Group,
has gone about its business with dedication to the proper
and true maintenance of Sumitomo traditions, and with an
emphasis given to “place prime importance on sound
management,” “refrain from pursuing easy gains,” and
“benefit the nation and society.” We have done two
things to achieve a sustained increase in corporate value
based on Sumitomo’s Business Spirit. First, we have
ensured that our decision-making, execution of busi-
ness, and oversight are all performed as they should be.
Second, we have improved corporate governance to
ensure law-abiding management practices, improved
efficiency, and heightened transparency.

General meeting of shareholders

The general mesting of our shareholders is a valuable
opportunity to properly provide shareholders with infor-
mation regarding their interests and to listen to their
views on our management. This year, we held our meeting
on June 19, 2008, a day that did not coincide with the
annual peak for Japanese annual meetings, in order to
facilitate attendance by as many shareholders as possible.
We welcomed 1,193 shareholders to our meeting, a
tevel approaching last year’s record high. We received
many questions and opinions from them.

Decision-making and business execution
Important decisions related to management of our cor-
porate group are discussed at the Management Council
(generally, convened twice monthly) and then at the
Board Meeting (generally, held once a month). Each
executive officer controls the operations of his assigned
department, according to decisions of the Board. We
have a lean organization; there are only ten directors,
and 27 executive officers some of whom are concur-
rently directors. When we adopted the executive officer
systemn, in 1999, we reduced the number of directors
from 38 in the prior year to ten. This enabled us to clarify
lines of responsibility, streamline decision-making, and
achieve deeper discussions at the Board Meetings.
Sumitomo Metals endeavors to raise its corporate value
from a long-term viewpoint, but in order to ensure trans-
parency with regard to responsibility during any given
business year, we have limited the term of office of our
directors to one year, since 2006.

Decision-making and Supervision Auditing
oo @urpern A | | Asemmmi A |
| Resmis) Gommiies | B I GG
IAuditorsi
Business Execution
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j Urganizational ASSets: Corporate Governance

Auditing

To provide oversight of our management activities, we
have adopted an auditor system consistent with the
Corporate Law of Japan. A majority of our auditors,
three out of a total of five, are outside auditors. Each
auditor ensures that internal controls satisfy the require-
ments of the Corporate Law. The term of office of auditors
is four years, and outside auditors have no vested interests
in the Company.

The Internal Auditing Department audits the business
operations of the Company and major Group compa-
nies in Japan and overseas.

Auditing of our accounts and financial statements is done
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu-Japan. There is an ongoing
process of exchange of information between this certified
public accountant, our auditors, and our Internal Auditing
Department in connection with audit planning, implemen-
tation, reporting and follow-up measures.

Internal controls
Sumitomo Metals strives to improve its intemal control sys-

tems so as to ensure optimum performance of all activities.
(1) Arrangements for decision-making and
supervising function by the Board of Directors
Sumitomo Metals has adopted the executive officer
system. Important managerial issues are first reviewed

by the Management Council and presented to the

Board for its decision. Candidates for appointment to

the Board are screened by the Perscnnel Committee,

which reports to the Board.

(2) Arrangements for management of risk of loss

Sumitomo Metals has established in-house pre-crisis

prevention and post-crisis management procedures,

(3} Arrangements for business execution

The Internal Auditing Department supervises business

activities to assure that the activities of the business

operations conform to requirements in relevant laws and

regulations as well as to the Articles of Incorporation and

the Compliance Program.

(4} Arrangements to assure proper activities by the
Group companies

Major Group companies are required to consult with

and report to the Company on important decisions in
order to promote group management. [n addition, the
Company’s Internal Auditing Department conducts
audits of Group companies.

Remuneration Paid to Directors and Corporate Auditors

Number Payment
v atyearend  infiscal 2007 !

Directors W0 Y733 milkon | mi ol
Auditors 5 ¥147 million | comped
Total 15 ¥830 mitiion ; ¥80 mis
{3) (¥41 mittion) : ¥15 mig

Dialogues with the Investment Community, Including Shareholders

Sumitomo Metals conducts a wide range of investor
relations activities, so that shargholders and other
investors can understand actual conditions, policies,
and practices of the Company.

We supply corporate information needed for investment
decision-making timely and accurately. For example, all
important disclosures are made in both Japanese and
English at the Company’s website on the day of disclosure.
We endeavor to provide information fairly and widely.

For institutional investors, we hold conferences and
welcorne them on tours of production facilities. In partic-
ular, during fiscal 2007 we provided a tour and presenta-
tion at Sumitomo Metals (Kokura), Ltd., which manufac-
tures specialty steel bars and rods. In 2008, we orga-
nized a plant tour and presentation at the Steel Tube
Works in Amagasaki, where we make high-end seam-
less pipes. We aiso frequently meet with institutional
investors individually, and four times a year we invite
them to results briefings. Through activity such as this we
strive to provide information in a timely and appropriate

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid,

mannetr.
For individual investors as well, we provide factory vis-
its and hotd other events. During fiscal 2007, investors vis-
ited four of our steel works. In all, 750 persons accepted
our invitation and joined in these tours. During fiscal
2008 we intend to invite 1,200 persons on such tours.

Plant tours for our shareholders
({The hot strip mill at the Kashima Steel Works)




jj Organizational Assets: Compliance and Risk Management

Compliance measures

Compliance is a crucial precondition for corporate sus-
tainability. What is essential for compliance is the making of
rules and developing knowledge and awareness of those
rules on the part of the related people. As expressed in “A
man of noble character esteerns wealth, and is scrupulous
in seeking the way to acquire it,” quoted earlier, the
importance of compliance is well established in
Sumitomo’s tradition. As a recent move to maintain that tra-
dition, we have formed a Compliance Committee, which is
charged with ensuring that our Compliance Program
functions as it should. We have also formulated the
Sumitomo Metals Corporate Code of Conduct and clarified
the importance of legal compliance and respect for cor-
porate ethics.

In order to ensure all employees are thoroughly
grounded in matters related to compliance under the
system and rules set above, the Company also set up the
Compliance Consultation Office. Moreover, we have
taken steps to have our Group companies adopt compli-
ance programs, each at an appropriate scale relative to
that at Sumitomo Metals. Besides what we do by way of
compliance-related training and education for execu-
tives and employees, we designate October and
November of each year for the enhancement and thorough
promotion of compliance. We expect all of our people to
be carrying a Compliance Card that we distribute, and we
invite everyone to sign and submit a Compliance
Pledge. By these means we are working hard tc ensure a
high level of awareness of the importance of compli-

w
3
0
@

Sumitomo Metals Corporate Code of Conduct

Organization

Compliance Committee

Compliance Manual

Compliance Pledge

Education Monitoring by auditor

Compliance Card Providing access to

counseling

Risk Management

Routine Measures _

The Sumitomo Metals Group has developed counter-
measures for risks that can be anticipated in connection
with our conduct of business, and is prepared for risk
management to minimize damage in the event that a
risk materializes. The Risk Management Conference
(chaired by the president) deals with the identification
and analysis of risk, formulates basic policy for risk
management, and provides leadership and oversight for
each risk type and each department of the Company.
Each department alsc manages risks, according to the pol-
icy formulated at the Risk Management Conference. For
the particularly important categories of compliance risk,
environmental risk, and information security risk, sub-
committees have been established.

Dealing With Emergencies
In the event of a large-scale natural disaster, a major
accident, or a serious crime, a Crisis Management
Committee will be immediately constituted (with the
president as its head,) and arrangements have been pre-
pared to enable it to function immediately in response.
We have prepared a manual of procedures to follow in
the event of a major earthquake or tsunami. We are also
preparing plans to minimize the impact of such events
on society in general and our customers, by means of
arrangements for a Recovery Headquarters, by prepar-
ing firefighting and other equipment, and by drafting
guidelines for action, so that we can continue operations
after a major earthquake.

Annual Report 2008



jj Board of Directors, Auditors and Accounting Auditors

Directors

Hiroshi Tomono
Representative Director

Hiroshi Shimozuma
Representative Director

Tsutomu Ando
Representative Director

Fumio Hombe
Representative Director

D

Yasuyuki Tozaki
Director

{Chairman) {President} {Executive Vice President)  (Executive Vice President}  (Executive Vice President)
Aeepors, e tor Stee Satos & R~ porm.bie tor Corporaic Re pohsia ‘or Enyvronment
Production Adminstraton Flan~rg Department, 'rtemal Cepartfnert, Technology & Cus dy
Depariment. Proect Augitr) Department. Treasury Agmnigtiaton & Planeng
Deveiopment, Branch Department, Pub’c Departinent, Blust Furnzce Praact
Otfices/Overseas Offices. and salca Relutons & investor Relubons Department, 'melloctua) Property
actwities in alt internal compariea. Departmant, General Affairs Qepartment. Corporate Research &
General Manager of Osaka Haad Offica Departmant, Lagal Department, Davelopment Laboratories. Center of
Peryennat & industrat Retations Appucation Tecrmology for
Department, and Safety & Health Customers and technalogy m all
Department nternal comeantes
Auditors

As Corporate Auditors, we verify whether corporate
governance is functioning effectively, the basis of the
Company's sustained growth, by auditing the execution
of duties by the Directors. At present, there are five
Corporate Auditors, comprising two Standing (full-
time) Corporate Auditors and three pari-time ocutside
Corporate Auditors, and we carry out audits in accor-
dance with the “Auditing Rules” determined by the
Board of Corporate Auditors. Recently, we have also
been conducting audits focusing on whether deci-
sions made by Directors are considered reasonable
as business judgments and whether the internal control
systems that Directors have developed are appropriate
and work effectively. In addition, we are highly inter-
ested in how the decisions made by the Board of
Directors are implemented and yield results.
Furthermore, we cooperate with the Internal
Auditing Department. We also communicate closely

o3

Shigeru Sakurai Kitaro Yoshida Shogo Takai Eiji Asada Keiichi Murakami
Standing Corporate Standing Corporate Corporate Auditor Corporate Auditor Corporate Auditor
Auditor Auditor Aftomey Certified Public AgCountant Attoeney, Distinguished Visiting

Professtw of Dashisha
University Low School

with the accounting auditor (Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu-Japan,) verify the independence and quali-
ty of their audits, and evaluate the appropriateness of
auditing methods and results.

QOutside Corporate Auditors receive full explanation
and reporting on manageriaf issues from Standing
Corporate Auditors at meetings of the Board of
Corporate Auditors and make sincere efforts to give
their candid opinions as outside auditors at meetings of
the Board of Directors. In addition, outside Corporate
Auditors join with Standing Corporate Auditors in
conducting regular interviews with Directors as well
as visits to plants and subsidiaries to conduct audits,
and thereby endeavor to understand the current status
and direction of the Company.

Shogo Takai
Outside Corporate Auditor

Sumitomo Metal Industries,ltd.




Yasuo Imai
Director

{Executive Vice President)

Pres dent of Pipe & Tube Camparny

Syuichiro Kozuka

Director

{Sentor Managing
Executive Officer)

Aot pons.bie for Gemeral Aftars
Departmonl, Lega! Deportmont,
Porconne! & trdizde ! Relit ong
Decanment, Jnd Sototy & Hextth
Degartment

Yoshinari Ishizuka

Director
{Senior Managing
Executive Officer)

Repor- B lor Ty
Degurmemt g Fub ¢ A aton: &
v 2t Rt o, Departmont

Kouji Morita
Director

(Senior Managing
Executive Officer)

Premgent of Ra woy, Autpmotve &
Kug nery Panta Corrporry

Ichiro Miyasaka

Director
[Senior Managing
Executive Officer}

Precdert of Stee! Sheet. Pixta
Titan am & Strectura! Steed
Camrpany

Accounting Auditors

—

Osami Yoshida

Certified Public Accoyntant
Engagerment Partnes
Buiortte Touchs
Tohmatsu-Japan

‘ A
Yukitaka Maruchi
Certilied Public Accountant
Engagement Partner

Detoitta Touche
Tohmatsu-Japan

Tsuguo lto

Cortificd Public Accountant
Engugemant Partner
Deloitte Touche
Tobmatzu-Japan

Based on our mission and duty as Certified Public
Accountants {CPA) and our management philosophy
that states, “Ensure fairness within our economic
society and take the lead in contributing to its devel-
opment,” Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu-Japan is reaf-
firming its social mission and responsibility and
putting the greatest priority on quality in all its opera-
tions, guided by the slogan “Quality first.”

We endeavor to constantly listen to the views of the
public and to ensure independence, probably one of the
most important principles a CPA should observe. We
also endeavor to ensure integrity, an approach that
all professionals should naturatly have. By observing
these principles, we will continue to strive to carry
out accurate audits that satisfy the expectations of
al stakeholders and work to meet the needs of society.
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j Corporate Social Responsibility

Providing service to society is at the core of Sumitomo’s Business Spirit.

At Sumitomo, we make direct approaches to environmental issues,

and have a track record of utilizing technology to resolve problems.

This is an intrinsic quality of Sumitomo Metals management - part of our corporate DNA.

| will devote myself to encouraging a new industry and share profits
with tens of millions of people.
Saihei Hirose, First Director-General of Sumitomo.

Sumitomo’s businesses must benefit not only Sumitomo itself

but the nation and society as well.
Teigo Iba, Second Director-General of Sumitomo.

to its former lush natural state.
Teigo lba, Second Director-General of Sumitomo.

|
1‘
|
!
|
I
! Sumitomo must return the entire mountain area around Besshi
|
l

A History of Sensitivity to the Environment, and Mobilizing Technology for Environmental Challenges

Sumitomo has a history of silvicultural activities that
date to early years of Japan’s modern period. The second
Director-General of Sumitomo, Teigo |ba, relocated the
copper refinery that had been at the Besshi Copper
Mine, in Ehime Prefecture, to a littoral location on
Shisaka Island in order to prevent harm to residents in the
area of the refinery. Trees were planted to replace those

Before afforestation (1881)

(Sumitomo Historical Archives)

Sumitomo Metal Industries,lid.

that had been lost due to smoke from the refinery, and
today the mountain slopes are covered with a splendid
cover of forest. Technological development subse-
quently vielded a method of processing harmful sul-
phates that were a byproduct of refining. The use of
technology to protect the environment, and to solve
environmental problems, is a tradition at Sumitomo.

After afforestation (2003}

{Sumitomo Forestry Co., Ltd.)




Making a Global Contribution to Preserving the Environment:
Part of Sumitomo Metals Management Strategy

Our products make an improved and greatest feasible contribution to preservation of the envi-
ronment. This is our basic policy.

Technological development with an environment-friendly orientation:

80% of R&D expenses for the Corporate Research & Development Laboratories is
devoted to environment-related matters

Environmental load .

Lighter motor vehicles

@ Steel sheets for hot-press use
@ Hydro-forming technology

@ Lead-free machining steel

@ Chromium-free surface-treated
steel sheets

@ Pipe for developing
natural gas*

@ Materials for nuclear
power slation

@ Steam generator heat
exchanger pipes

@ Materials for high-efficiency
powar generation

® Stainiess steel sheets for

® Energy-saving methods in stesl
manufacturing processes

@ Steel tubes for LNG transport

@ Electromagnetic steel sheets
for motors*

fuel cell separaiors

*Note: For details see “Technology Assets,” p. 39-42.

Environment-friendly manufacturing processes for sharp reductions
in environmental load

Reducing carbon footprints

Production of crude steel by Sumitomo Metals in fiscal
2007 was 13.62 million tons, up 20% from the amount in
fiscal 1990. In sharp contrast to this increase, our efforts at
reducing CO2 production resulted in a 3.6% decrease
during the same period, to 26.6 miltion tons. Cur emission
of CO2 per ton crude steel was 1.95 tons - 20% less
than it had been in fiscal 1990.

Total and Unit CO2 Emission

Millign tons of COZ Tons of CO2/ ton of erude steal
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|
| 20 20
|
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20 95 00 05 06 07 /)
I CO: emissions generated by endrgy sourcas
—&— CO? emussion por unit of preduction

20% reduction in unit CO2 emission
from fiscal 1990 to fiscal 2007

Ongoing efforts at increasing energy efficiency

Our energy consumption per ton crude steel in fiscal
2007 was 21% less than it had been in fiscal 1990 and
was one of the lowest of all integrated steel producers in
the world.

Total and Unit Energy Consumption

peia jouis {(P.J) giga joule (GJ) / ton of crude sloeel
330 =30
1
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v 320 25
‘ 310 =20 [
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| 300 15
| |
. 290 =10
|
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90 95 00 Q3 06 07 (7
W Energy consumption
—4— Energy consumption per urd

% 21% reduction in unit energy consumption
from tiscal 1990 to fiscal 2007
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g Lorporate social hesponsibility

We are building a blast furnace in Brazil " -
9 Waste Disposal Volume and the Recycle Ratio

that will emit virtually no CO2

With our joint venture partner Vallourec we are building a SZ%WQW g ouls () fron °’°’“"“i‘§5‘

blast furnace in Minas Gerais State, Brazil, for production

of seamless pipe. Completion is scheduled for 2010. 20 25

This furnace will utilize charcoal made from eucalyptus 310 20

wood, purchased by means of a contract with local

plantation owners, as a reduction agent. The lifetime 300 =15

amount of COz2 that is absorbed by eucalyptus trees we 250 10

are to purchase is calculated to be equivalent to the

armount of COz that is to be emitted by the furnace. 280 I -3
270 -— - C 0

Sumitomo Metals is a large-scale recycler %0 95 00 05 06 07 v,

Since the beginning of the 1990's we have endeavored to : 52213?;232322 per urit

recycle our by-products to the greatest extent that is 84% reduction in waste disposal volume
. . , from fiscal 1990 to fiscal 2007
feasible. Disposal of waste is now down to 116,000 tons a

year, 84% less than it was in fiscal 1990, and our recycle
ratic is 98%.

Lighter weight and higher performance are making our products more eco-friendly.

Our calculation is that the reduction in CO2 emissions made possible by our products is 120 million tons
a year, greatly exceeding our own emission (about 26.6 million tons a year).

Through a wide variety of our products, Sumitomo
Metals is contributing to the development of environ-
ment-friendly products made by our customers. The
most important of these products from Sumitomo

COz2 smisslon FY2007
we = of tans, pal
20
0 -
26'6Imll[onltonsTpTeY
0 _

COz goneratad in
Manutacturing Processes

Metals that serve to reduce the burden on the environment -20
are pipes that make development of natural gas -40
resources possible, boiler tubes for high-efficiency f:g
power generation plants, and lightweight steel for auto- 100
mobile bodies. In particular, natural gas is an energy 120

with relatively low environmental load. These products, col-
lectively, account for a large share of our total sales.

Note Company estmate:

Automotive

Sumiquench: quench-hardenable steel sheet for hot pressing

We can produce steel sheet that is formed by stamping in a press and given high
tensile strength at the same time, by presswork processing sheets that have
been heated to 900°C. This process has enabled production of high-tensile
strength steel for automotive body parts, rated at 1,000MPa or higher, possible for
the first time. This product, used for collision-absorbing parts for vehicle doors, has
30% greater tensile strength and is 10% less in weight than the parts it can
replace. Application of this is expected to expand to include other auto parts.

- Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.




Electromagnetic steel sheets for
high-performance motors

We have developed electromagnetic steel sheet that
has outstanding magnetic properties and is very workable,
making it ideal for use in hybrid automobiles and as the
iron core of air conditioner motors. This new material,

the SXH Series, improves motor efficiency and lowers
COz2 emission. During fiscal 2007, it earned the Ichimura
industrial Prize for our company.

High-performance heat-resistant materials
for power generation

We have a global market share of 80% for super high-end
boiler tubes; these products make higher efficiency possible
at thermal power generation plants where the new type of
ultra-supercritical power boiler is used. These boilers,
which operate under conditions of very high pressure
and very high temperature, increase the efficiency of
generation and reduce CO2 ermission.

High-performance crash box

Developed jointly by us and the Toyeda lron Works Co.,
Ltd. this high-performance crash box has the highest
energy-ahsomption capability of all similar products available
in the industry and has contributed to make vehicles
lighter. At the time of a coilision, the crash box collapses
like an accordion, absorbing the energy of impact and
increasing the safety of vehicle passengers. It has been
adopted for use in Toyota Motor's Vitz (also called
Yaris) hatchback.

Before Alter
collisicn collision

== Crash 8ox

!%n%ﬁ
Front-sifle Bumpor 7/ Jr,‘ - jﬁy

Bumper Sutferer

Energy Development

Fatigue crack arrester steel for welded structure
(FCA-W)

We have developed a type of steel plates that contradicts
what has been common knowledge in the industry, in
that fatigue resistance at welds is uniform no matter
what steel materials are used. This product is suitable
for LNG carriers, where it contributes to lighter vessel
tonnage and tonger vessel life.

environment is more corrosive than those for crude oil, creating a need for spe-
cial pipe. Also, conditions become increasingly corrosive as drilling advances
deeper; Sumitomo Metals is the sole supplier of pipe that has the extra
strength and high resistance to the effects of hydrogen sulfide needed for

these situations. (For details, see p.42.)

As an energy source, natural gas when used for power generation releases less
COz than petroleum does. At many gas fields drilling sites, however, the

Annual Report 2008




j Lorporate Social Responsibility

How Sumitomo Metals is evaluated outside the Company

We became the first steel maker to
merit the top environmental rating by
the Development Bank of Japan

In June 2008, for the second consecutive year, Sumitomo
Metals received a Development Bank of Japan (DBJ)
loan based on it being rated at the highest grade in the
DBJ’s four-grade environmental rating schedule: “com-
panies with particularly impressive environmental pro-
grams.”

3 CEXEELEIL

2008
" 4

Sumitomo Metals is the first steelmaker to merit the
highest score in the Bank’s environmental rating sys-
tem. This distinction made it possible for the Company to
obtain a loan with preferential conditions,

Metals to woods:
Continuing our silvicultural tradition

Creating a True Forest of 500,000 Trees
At the site of what was the Hachinohe limestone mine,
operated by our subsidiary, Sumimetal Mining, we are
sponsoring the Tree-planting Festival with a wish to
make the forest survive as a habitat for Kamoshika {wild
serow) in the future. This is an annual event which calls for
planting 500,000 trees of 30 broadleaf species that are
native to the area, such as Konara ocak and Mizunara
water oak, over a ten-year petiod. The project was
begun in 2005, and on the occasion of the fiscal 2008 fes-
tival, 1,030 area residents and Sumitomo employees
joined in planting 12,000 trees. During fiscal 2008 we
plan to reach 30,000 as the total number of trees we
have planted.

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid.

We were the only steelmaker

to be selected by

Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP)

CDP is an organization in which 315 institutional
investors woridwide have participated to select companies
that show excellent endeavors conceming the preven-
tion of global warming. In 2007, Sumitorno Metals was
selected as one of 68 “Best in class” companies among
the FT500". We were the only steelmaker to be selected.

* The FT 500 is a list of the world's largest 500 listed companies in terms of market
capitalization,

Contributing to our community

At each location where we have production activities we
open our facilities for tours by primary and middle
school students and adult residents of the vicinity.
During fiscal 2007 about 40,000 persons participated in
these tours. In these communities we are also active in
organizing and supporting clean-up campaigns, sports
training events and various volunteer activities including
local festivals, as additional aspects of our efforts to
make desirable contributions to our communities.

Also, the Kashima Antlers professional soccer team,
originated in Sumitomo Metals' own in-house soccer
team, is helping this sport gain popuiarity in Japan by
being one of the top teams in the J. League.
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| 11 Year Financial Performance

Fy1997 FY1998 FY1999 ) FY2000
March 31, 1998 March 31,1999 March 31, 2000 March 31, 2001

Unit: Millions of yen

Operating Results:

Netsales ..o 1,469 417 1,347,004 1,424,104 1,497,641
Operating profit .........cooociiiiiiiieeee 98,670 12426 2,300 - 90,598
Recurring profit*1 ... 40,727 —64,950 -63,791 ° 23,626
Income before income taxes and minority interests... 4,697 —86,520 -212,990 20,777
NEtINCOME ...o..cveeeeeeeerecece e 4,013 —69,469 -145,124 | 5,836
Capital expenditures on property, plant ,

and equipment (Construction base)*2 ......... 128,900 137,300 106,600 | 77,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment*2... 119,400 119,700 146,800 : 132,200
Research and development expenses*3 ......... 26,500 22,500 23,989 ; 20,980

Financial Position: ?
Total asSSets ..o s 2,493,343 2,720.513 2,774,496 2,733,114
Shareholders’ equity:

Total equity — Minority interests .................. 535,986 502,249 341,598 368,116
Total equity ......oooriieiii 565,855 530,197 389,659 415,620
DEDE e, 1,384,209 1,673,336 1,882,335 1,780,694

Cash Flows*5: '
Operatingcashflow ... — — 46,711 158,721
Investing cash flow ...l — — —80,516 9,982
Financing cash floW ......coooe.veevveereeereerenennn, — — -101,028 -142,602
Freecashflow .........ccooocevevniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn _ — -33,804 ‘ 168,704
Cash and cash equivalent at end of year ......... — — 79274 101,092

Amounts per Share of Common Stock _ ‘ Unit: Yen '
NEEINCOME .....ovevcrreeiceeccrneniesnreenssens oo 1.28 -20.59 ~39.95 161
Dividend (yen /year) ..........ccccccoiniiinnneiiiinnenn. 3.0 0 0 | 0

Financial Index: Unit: % ' B

Retumn on assets (ROA)*6:

Operating profit margin (ROS) ........................ 6.7 0.9 0.7 [ 6.0
Recurring profit before interest payment / ‘

Total assets (yearly average)........................ 3.1 ~1,1 -0.9 | 22
Return on equity (ROE)*6: ’
Net income / Shareholders’ equity {yearly average} 0.7 -13.4 -34.4 1.6
Equity ratio: |
Shareholders’ equity / Total assets  ............ 215 18.5 123 | 13.5
Debt to equity ratio: ' Unit: Times _
Debt / Shareholders’ equity ........................ ) 258 3.33 551 4.84
Price earning ratio (PER): :
Share price / Net income per share ............ 172.7 — - 44.1
) Unit: Billion3s of yen !
Market capitalization at end of year ............... 695.1 519.4 2905 ' 2578
Unit: Miliions of shares ' o
Number of shares issued at year end )
{(including treasury shares) ....................... 3,145.5 3,632.2 3,632.2 3,632.2
Unit: Yen o o
Share price atend of year ..................... 221 143 80 71

Note: The amounts stated on pages 55 and 56 are rounded down to the nearest million, based on Japanese GAAP, and can differ from the amounis stated on the financial
statements which start from page 63 through page B3.

*1 Recurring profit is an impontant management indicator at Sumitoma Metals and a common item on financial statements in Japan; calculated by adding to or subtracting from
operating profit items such as inlerest and dividend income, aquity in eamings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies, interest expense, and foreign exchange
gains or iosses.

*2 Capital expenditure and depreciation amounts for FY1997 through FY2001 are calculated based on unit of 100 million yen.

"3 Research and dovelopment expenses amounts for FY 1997 and FY1998 ars calculated based on ynit of 100 million yen.

*4 Debt = (Short-term borrowings) + {Long-term debt} — (Obligation to retum collateral under security loan agreement) — (Lease obligation)

*5 Cash flows figures for FY 1997 and FY1998 are not available.

*6 Total assets amounts {yearly avarage) and shareholders’ squity amounts {yearly average) used to calculate ROA and RQE respectively, are calculated based on unif of
million yen tor FY 1997, and unit of thousand yen tor FY 1998 through FY2007.

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid.




FY2001

March 31, 2002 March 31, 2003

FY2002

FY2003

FY2004

Unit: Millions of yen

FY2005
March 31, 2004 Mz-_nrch 31,2005 March 31, _2006

FY2006
March 31, 2007

FY2007
March 31, 2008

1,349,528 1,224,633 1,120,855 1,236,920 1,552,765 1,602,720 1,744,572
40,096 69,828 23,041 182,878 305,804 303,774 274,396
748 41,309 68,715 173,245 280,733 327,676 298,218
-105,167 33,278 39,901 169,577 306,183 341,725 281,298
-104,720 17,076 30,792 110,864 221,252 226,725 180,547
74,600 50,906 67,190 60,374 82,679 135,868 178,887
121,100 N,762 78,3 79,238 75,255 72,291 102,565
18,646 13,555 13,590 14,732 16,427 18,769 20,102
2,433,431 2,122,370 2,001,727 1,923,142 2,113,3N 2,301,556 2,418,310
274,432 328,754 376,036 483,237 720,866 880,807 901,946
J25N7 347,632 399,428 517,311 762,172 924,798 949,303
1,648,779 1,415,303 1,171,216 885918 679,778 717,984 883,888
18,478 161,127 220,820 277,389 311,943 171,833 230,043
39,633 58,329 —27.A18 -12,013 -63,892 -108,934 —274,316
~-89,466 —164,935 —240,811 —-297.336 —258,367 -83,456 48,751
58,111 219,457 193,402 265,376 248,050 62,899 —44,273
70,390 121,712 74,025 42416 32,596 13,020 16,669
' Unit: ¥en
—-28.83 4.36 6.42 23.05 46.03 47 .89 39.43
0 1.5 1.5 5.0 7.0 8.0 10.0
Unit: % o
10 57 8.3 14,8 19.7 19.0 15.7
1.1 29 4.4 9.7 14.5 15.4 13.2
=326 57 8.7 258 367 28.3 20.3
113 15.5 18.8 251 341 83 37.3
Unit: Times ' i
6.01 4.3 an 1.83 0.94 0.82 0.98
— 124 21.6 8.4 1.0 12.7 2.6
Unit: Billions of yen
174.3 258.1 667.7 927.0 2,425.2 2,826.2 1,753.6
Unit: Millions of shares
3,632.2 4,782.2 4,805.9 4,805.9 4,805.9 4,805.9 4,805.9
Unit: Yen i
48 54 139 193 505 &09 378
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1. Business Environment in Fiscal 2007

{ended March 31, 2008)

During the fiscal year under review, steel demand contin-
ued to grow globally. World crude steel production
increased 7.5% from the previous year to 1,343.5 million
tons, according to the International iron and Steel
Institute. In Japan, the Japan Iron and Steel Federation
reported that domestic crude steel production rose by
3.77 million tons to 121.52 million tons, marking a
record high for the first time since fiscal 1973.

Some areas of steel demand experienced adjust-
ments. These included domestic demand for products
used in the construction sector, due to the revision of
the Building Standards Law, and an adjustment in
seamless pipe inventory in the U.S. However, demand
for high-grade products used in the automotive and
energy-related industries, on which the Sumitomo Metals
Group concentrates its resources, was robust. Our steel
business (representing 93.0% of total net sales) continued
to grow in fiscal 2007.

Concern over prospects of the economic slowdown in
the U.S. has been intensifying, but we believe that
emerging markets will maintain high economic growth
and that demand for steel and other basic materials will
remain strong in the future.

QOur raw material prices surged again. In fiscal 2007, this
was mainly driven by a hike in shipping freight rates but the
past few years have seen a widespread steep rise in
prices of iron ore, coal, and non-ferrous metals. We
have made efforts to raise product selling prices
accordingly. Regarding exchange rates, the yen was
generally stronger against the U.S. dollar: 117 yen in fiscal
2006 and 114 yen in fiscal 2007.

The engineering business (0.9% of sales) is mainly
engaged in the steel hridge business. With little
prospect for growth in public sector demand, the harsh

Change in Market Structure of Qur Products

business environment continued. The electronics busi-
ness (3.5% of sales) saw steady growth in macro
demand but pricing competition continued to be severe,

2. Operating Results

The Sumitomo Metals Group is striving to accelerate its
distinctiveness by reinforcing areas of strength in order to
deliver a sustained increase in corporate value, with an
emphasis on quality. These are the basic objectives of the
current Medium-Term Business Plan (fiscal 2006 to fiscal
2008} It is important to become resilient to downside risks
and realize steady earnings, in order to improve corporate
value. We are focusing on distinctive operations and
businesses that are based on steady, iong-term rela-
tionships of trust with customers. At Sumitomo Metals, we
use the term “core earnings” to refer to profits generated
by such businesses in which we supply distinctive prod-
ucts that are resilient to downturns in demand thanks to
our competitive technology or unique business model.
The metric we use for this is the ratio of core earnings to
consolidated operating profit: the core earnings ratio.
By pursuing an increase of the value of this ratio, we are
attempting to minimize downside risks and realize sus-
tained growth.

In the previous Medium-Term Business Plan (fiscal
2002-2005,} under the slogan of “Reform and Rebirth,” we
focused on core businesses, sold non-core business
assets, paid down debt, and strengthened our financial
position. In the current Medium-Term Business Plan (fiscal
2006-2008,} our major theme is to accelerate disting-
tiveness. We are aiming for sustainable baianced
growth in both quality and scale. In fiscal 2007, the second
year of the current plan, we achieved sales growth and
maintained high profitability. At the same time, we
proactively implemented capital expenditures designed to
accelerate our distinctiveness.

Enhance
Core Earnings*

Market Surga in Charge in supply-demand  Change in supplyidemang
sstumption  fetenaro o oty 5
muhea  seald oo shea Core Earnings Ratio**
Past > Progent £ Fulure (%)
fLow/medium-grace, [ 1,620 1,744.5
el 82
i steel’shest A K The area wel~_78 Enhance L
[ediucnit giace e~ ——— suppl o arg earnings,/ 7 260 208.2
steal shesl ’ ﬂnﬁfﬁ,;?o'g- ] ’
High-grade ficts resill 4 f\d 180 180.5
steel plats / todoynturns .,
| Specialtystesl | pdemand o 2,380 2.418.3
! Seamiess pipe N 48 680 883.8
i - bé
tn._ w‘%ﬂ?a " 1,070 801.9
05 06 07 08 (FY) ’
owotcrorness [V~ O iPlan} %
*Core aamings: Prafil Qenearated by businesses that supply distinctive products resiliant to downturns in demand thanks 1o competitive technalogy or Roturnf 13 13.2

uniqua business medel (Sumitomo Metals calculation). **Corn eamings ratio: Ratio ol core aamings to consolidated operating protit [onfassels’
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<Results for fiscal 2007, compared to 2006>

1) Net Sales

Net sales increased ¥141.8 billion year on year, or
8.9%, to ¥1,744.5 billion. The steel business recorded
an increase in sales of ¥133.5 billion, or 9.0%, to
¥1,622.3 billion, supported by, in addition to overall revision
of selling prices, sales growth at the Pipe & Tube
Company, primarily due to higher sales prices for seamless
pipe. The engineering business and the electronics
business posted sales increases of ¥4.6 billion and ¥2.2
billion, respectively. Including the other business, all
business segments recorded growth in sales.

Net Sales

02 03 04 05 04 07 /1

2) Operating Profit and Recurring Profit
Operating profit fell ¥29.3 billion, or 9.7%, to ¥274.3 billion,
while the operating profit margin deteriorated 3.2 per-
centage points to 15.7%. Major factors include a ¥104.0
billion deterioration caused by higher raw material
prices and a ¥96.5 bilion improvement in sales.
Excluding a ¥16.0 billion increase in depreciation as a
result of tax reform and a one-time ¥5.0 billion impact that
resulted from relining of a blast furnace, actual deteriora-
tion in operating profit was small.

Contributors to Change in Operating Profit
(FYOE to FY07)

---------------------------------------- . (¥ billian)
Increase in ¥29.4 bin‘ron decrease
-16.0 fixec costs
— 30 ___. .50 -180 lmpmvemem T
;r:""”“ é.lmr:m ' i umeignm
reling + | fuctuation ‘5 0
. 1044
.
2827 Raw ng orca
(Oparaung pri:m ox. rpr:a;:;lai 5'”““0" aﬁ{uslmont
ona—tlrtle ractora) other
/‘\_)
0 =1 [ =
06 076

Recurring profit decreased ¥29.4 biltion, or 9.0%, to
¥298.2 billion and the recurring profit margin was 17.1%,
down 3.3 percentage points from fiscal 2006. In addition to
a ¥21.0 bilion decrease in operating profit caused by
regulatory and temporary factors, a tax recognition at
SUMCO CORPORATION, an equity-method affiliated
company, also had a negative impact of ¥9.0 billion.
Excluding this total impact of ¥30.0 billion, we achieved
almost the same level of profit as in the previous year.

Note: Fecurring profit is an imporlant managernent indicator at Sumitomeo Metals and
a common item on financial statements in Japan; calculated by adding to or sub-
tracting from operating profit items such as interest and dividend incoma, aquity in
earnings of unconsclidated subsidiaries and associated companies, interest
expense, and foreign exchange gains or losses,

Contributors to Change in Recurring Profit
{FY06 to FY07)

____________________________________________________ {¥ bilthon)
¥29.4 billioe decrease

e Increase in Cost mpmvemenl .,

-14.0 tax racognition fixed cosis
— 59 90 -5.0 -20.0

T2t past
reform fumace

i O P
U tex
replacerent |+ 1 Riey ua"l%';‘ H
t 1]
[} 1 9
27 d 297.4 70 22

y Sell rica
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ang-ti ors) galn other
/I"\._L qul?r in earnings o
unconsofidated subsidiaries
G and assoclated companies

3) Other Income (Expenses), Net
Other income (expenses), net decreased ¥31.0 billion to
¥6.9 billion.

4) Net Income

Income before taxes and minority interests fell ¥60.4 billion,

or 17.7%, to ¥281.2 billion. The corporate tax burden dec-
reased ¥15.8 billion from the previous year, reflecting a dec-
rease in pretax income. Net income fell ¥46.1 billion, or 20.4%,
to ¥180.5 billion, while eamings per share (EPS) decreased
from ¥47.89 in fiscal 2006 to ¥39.43 in fiscal 2007.

47.89 39.43
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j Management's Discussion and Analysis

<Results for fiscal 2006, compared to 2005>

1) Net Sales

Net sales increased ¥49.9 billion year on year, or 3.2%, to
¥1,602.7 billion. The steel business reported an increase in
sales of ¥75.6 billion, or 5.4%, to ¥1,488.8 billion, sup-
ported by higher sales at the Pipe & Tube Company,
primarily on the back of higher demand for high-grade
seamless pipe. The engineering business posted a
decline in sales of ¥20.5 biltion, mainly reflecting cut-
backs in public-sector investment, while the electronics
business saw a drop in sales of ¥1.4 billion year on year
{comparisons for the steel business and the engineering
business are made on the basis of fiscal 2005 figures
after adjustment for business segment reclassification.)

2) Operating Profit and Recurring Profit
Operating profit fell ¥2.0 billion, or 0.7%, to ¥303.7 billion,
while the operating margin deteriorated 0.7 of a per-
centage point to 19.0%.

Contributors to Change in Operating Profit

................................................ N (¥ billion)
Sellirg pri ¥ 2.0 dacrease
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Recurring profit rose ¥46.9 billion, or 16.7%, to a
record ¥327.6 billion, due to a large increase in other
income on profit contributions from SUMCQO CORPO-
RATION and other equity-method affiliates, which
increased from ¥16.6 billion in fiscal 2005 to ¥41.8 billion
in fiscal 2006. The recurring profit margin was 20.4%.

Contributors to Change in Recurring Profit
(FYOS5 to FY08)

{¥ billion)
il bttt + ¥ 46.9 increase
-13.0
100 [ZO =—
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3) Other Income (Expenses), Net
Other income (expenses), net rose ¥37.5 billion to ¥37.9
billion.

4) Net Income

Income before income taxes and minority interests
increased ¥35.5 billion, or 11.6%, to ¥341.7 billion. Net
income rose ¥5.4 billion, or 2.5%, to ¥226.7 billion, a
record for the Group. Net income per share Increased
from ¥46.03 in fiscal 2005 to ¥47.89 in fiscal 2006,

3. Financial Pasition

1) Assets

As of March 31, 2008, total assets were ¥2,418.3 billion,
¥116.7 billion higher than at the end of the previous fiscal
year. The primary reason was an increase in fixed
assets of ¥111.5 billion in property, plant and equipment to
¥1,740.5 billion. We implemented capital expenditures
to accelerate distinctiveness, including some invest-
ments that were moved forward from the schedule for
investment in the next year. In addition, investment
securities increased thanks to favorable resuits at affiliat-
ed companies. Current assets rose ¥5.2 billion to
¥677.7 billion, mainly due to an increase in inventories
associated with a rise in raw material costs.

2) Liabilities and Equity

Total liabilities rose ¥92.2 billlon to ¥1,469.0 billion.
Debt* increased ¥167.9 billion to ¥883.8 billion, due to
funding needs associated with our proactive capital
spending.

Total equity rose ¥24.5 to ¥949.3 billion. Excluding
minority interests, shareholders’ equity increased ¥21.1 bil-
lion to ¥901.9 billion. This increase caused mainly by an
increase in retained earnings was partially offset by a
decrease of ¥99.5 billion in valuation and translation
adjustments stemming from a fall in the market value of
investment securities. As a result, the increase in share-
holders’ eguity was modest at ¥21.1 billion.

The equity ratio showed a marginal decrease from
38.3% in 2006 to 37.3% in 2007, due to an increase of
total assets.

*Debt = (Short-term borrowings) + (Long-term debt) —
(obligation to return coliateral under security ioan agree-
ment) — {Lease obligation)



¥ billion

Short-term borrowlng! (a] 1721 149.0 189.0
555.0 611.8 721.9
°""2:L‘3:§°.:;‘:’:;ﬁ.f’i':::;f’¢:;“’“ 10.0 100 -

Leasg obligation (d] 374 328 271
Total dabt balance (mb—c-d) 679.7 717.9 B83.8
Sharehalders Equlty 720.8 880.8 901.9
U 21133 23015 24183
%

Equi-ty ratio 34.1 38.3 37.3
14.5 15.4 13.2
36.7 28,3 203

Times
Debt o equitycatio . [ 0.82 0.98

Please refer to p55-56, for definition and calcularion of each indictor.

3) Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Group’s major off-balance sheet transactions include
long-term leases for computers, vehicles and other
items. Contingent liabilities mainly consist of maximum
repurchase obligations associated with liquidation of
assets.

4. Sources of Fund and Maintenance of Liquidity
1) Funding Policy

The Group's funding activities emphasize a balance
between stability and low costs. In addition to the
establishment of commitment lines of credit with some
major banks to maintain liquidity, the Group works to
improve the efficiency of funds, including efficiency at
consolidated subsidiaries, by operating a shared cash
management system since fiscal 2001. Sumitomo
Metals' long-term debt was rated AA- and its short-term
debt was rated J-1+ with a Stable Outlook by Japan
Credit Rating, Ltd. {as of the end of August 2008.)

2) Cash Flow

Net cash provided by operating activities increased
¥58.2 billion to ¥230.0 billion. An increase of ¥30.2 billion
in adjustments for depreciation and amortization and a
decrease of ¥42.2 billion in payment of income taxes
were the main contributions to the high level of cash
earned. Net cash used in investing activities increased
¥165.3 billion to ¥274.3 billion, reflecting higher capital
expenditures aimed at accelerating distinctiveness and
more investments in partners of strategic alliance. Free
cash flow, the amount of operating cash flow less
investing cash flow, decreased ¥107.1 billion to a net
payment of ¥44.2 billion. This reflects our aggressive
capital investment aimed at capiuring growth opportunities,
including the portion brought forward from the initial
plan. Net cash provided by financing activities was
¥48.7 billion, due to debt procurement and other items. In
sum, cash and cash equivalents at the end of fiscal
2007 increased ¥3.8 billion from the end of the previous
year, to ¥16.6 billion.

Debt to Cash Flow Ratio; Interest Coverage Ratio

(Times)

02 03 04 05 06 07 (Fvy
Interest coverage ratic —a—  Dabt 1o cash flow ratic —&—

Interest coverage ratio = Qperating cash flow / Interest expense
Debt to cash flow ratio= Debt batance / Operating cash How after interest payment
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5. Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures on property, plant and equipment
(construction base) increased ¥43.0 billion year on year to
¥178.8 billion (¥171.7 billion in the steel business, ¥3.6 bil-

Capital Expenditures and Depreciation

[¥ bitlion}
lion in the electronics business, and ¥3.4 billion in other 20
businesses.) The Pipe & Tube Company focused invest- 150
ment on additional capacity for super high-end seam-
less pipe products and upgrading upstream processes. At 100

the Steel Sheet, Plate, Titanium & Structural Steel
Company, major investments included the relining of
the No. 3 blast furnace and the construction of a pickling
line for automotive and power generation equipment for
independent power producers {IPPs.) Depreciation of

property, plant, and equipment increased ¥30.3 billion

to ¥102.5 billion.

Iron &
Steel-making
Process

Pipe & Tube

_Steel Sheet, Plate
&
- Structural Steel

Railway,
Automotive
] &
-Machinery Parts

i cher

H o B —

Enable annual capacity oi &
million tons at Kashima Steel Works

Enable annuzl capacity
of § miflion tons
al Wakayama Steel Works

Expand production capacity
of super high-and boiler tubes

Expand production capacity
of super high-end
saamlass pipe products

Establlish a manufacturing
hub for seamiess pipe in Brazil

Expand production capacity
of ultra-high-strength line pipes

Establish a manuiacturing
system of high-grade steel sheet
for automotive use

Enable 2-million-ton annual
capacity of high-end steel plate

Strengthen relationship with
a partner in the steel sheet sector
in India

Establish manufacturing bub
ol steel sheet in Vietnam

Expand forged crankshaft
busingss in China

Expand capacity to
produce raitway wheels

Expang forged crankshaft
business in North America

Achigve steel-making
procass innovation
at Sumitomo Metals (Kokura), Ltd.

*Total investment amount with joint venture partner.

Sumitomo Mctal Industries 1td.

Relining of No.3 Blast Furnace
{volums expansion)

18t step: Construction of
new No.1 Blast Furnace, efc.

2nd step: Construction of new No.2 Blast Furnace,
Reinforcement of steel making faciities, etc.

Introduction of new pipe-production
mill and other facilities

Capacity improvemant of new
pipe-production mill and secondary line

Establishment &f a jeint venture with Vallourec
Group for integrated seamlass pips manufacturing

Equipment improvement at the plata
mill and large- diameter (UOE) pipe mill

introduetion of new continuous
galvanizing fine and pickting line

Relining of heat furnace
and cut-off ling {and-shear)

Participation in an integrated stoel works
project of Bhushan Steel Limited in India

Establishment of a steel sheat
manufacturing joint venture with China Stee!

Intreduction of the 2nd forging line
at Huizhou Sumikin Forging Co., Lid.

Relining of heal treatment furnace
(Increase in production capacity from
200 thousand 1o 240 thousand units per year)

Introduction of the 3rd forging line
al imarnational Cranksnaft Ing.

Introdugtion of new refining furnace,
continueus casting milf and other facilities

Al e 603 PR s 2
508
N \ ]_[,_—I ]
0
02 03 04 05

118.0

115.0

6.5

*200.0

10.0

26.0

7.0

(Technical
Assistance)

*US$1.15 billion

3.0

290

4.5

06 07 v

[ Capital expenditures on property, plant, and equipment (canstruction base)
1 Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment

Started operation
ir May, 2007

Schedulad to begin
operation in June, 2009

Scheduled to begin
operation in Oct., 2012

Started oparation
in Oct., 2007

Staried opération
in Juty, 2008

Scheduled 1o begin
operation in 2010

Scheduled to bagin
operation i Mar., 2011

Started operation
in Sepi., 2007

Started operation
in Nov., 2007

Scheduled to begin
operation in 2011

Started gperation
in Nov., 2007

Started operation
in March, 2008

Schedulad 10 begin
operation in Jan., 2009

Scheduted to ba
completed by Mar., 2010



6. Research and Development Activities
Sumitomo Metals highly values R&D activities. Based on the
strateqy to further reinforce our presence in fields where we
are already strong, we are channeling research resources
into strategic areas, focusing on element technology, and
taking steps to speed up the R&D process. To win high eval-
uation from customers, we are conducting joint R&D
activities and dispatching engineers to work at cus-
tomers’ sites as visiting engineers, thereby tailoring R&D to
customer needs. We are also accelerating R&D by partici-
pating in new collaborative research projects with part-
ners in industry, government and academia. Specific
examples include projects with Osaka University and the
National Institute for Materials Science.

in fiscal 2007, research and development expenses
totaled ¥20.1 billion {mainly comprising ¥19.1 billion for the
steel business and ¥0.9 billion for the electronics business.)
7. Profit Distribution to Shareholders

{Dividend Policy)
Profits generated from operations are first used to
accelerate distinctiveness and to create corporate
value. The Group's investment criteria are to contribute to
sustainable growth that balances quality and scale,
accelerating distinctiveness, and providing a return that
exceeds the cost of capital, in order to help create cor-
porate value. The second use of profits is to distribute
them to shareholders. Qur basic policy is to pay a stable
dividend. Regarding financial leverage, we intend to
keep a debt to equity ratio at less than 1.0.

Principles of Capital Policy

1 Invest to create corporate value
2 Return to shareholders

Use of cash

1 Batanced growth in quality and scale
2 Accelerating distinctiveness
3 Return exceeding cost of capital

Investment
standard

| Maintain stable dividend

f Debt to equity ratio of less than 1.0

In fiscal 2007, we achieved a high level of net income, sim-
ifar to the level in the previous year. Despite our proactive
capital expenditures aimed at accelerating distinctive-
ness, our stable financial position was further enhanced.
Consequently, we decided to raise the annual dividend per
share by 2 yen to 10 yen.

| FY2007 |

10C0

8. Outloolk for Fiscal 2008 ending ivlarch 31, 2009
In fiscal 2008, Sumitomo Metals is targeting consolidated net
sales of ¥2,060 bilion, operating profit of ¥230 billion,
recutring profit of ¥250 billion, and net income of ¥160
billion. One of the most critical points will be how much our
steel business is able to absorb the negative impact of
significant price increases for iron ore, coal and other raw
materials by revision of our sales prices and cost reduction
efforts.

We expect the tight supply-demand balance for our
mainstay high-grade products and overall stee! products to
continue in fiscal 2008. In such an environment, we will
attempt to reap full benefit from our capital expenditures
aimed at accelerating distinctiveness. Specifically, we will
increase output of super high-end boiler tubes, high-end
seamless pipe products, crankshafts, and railway wheels,
and reinforce our manufacturing system for high-grade
steel sheets used in automobiles.

Given the projected time lag between the surge in raw
material prices and improvement in our profit, we expect a
temporary profit decline in fiscal 2008, year on year.
Nevertheless, we believe that our medium-term eamings
power is being steadily enhanced.

9. Operational Risks

Risk considerations in respect of operations and other

matters concerning the Sumitome Metals Group include

changes in raw material prices, product selling prices,

and a range of other factors. These risks could greatly

influence the decision-making of investors. Conscious of

such risks, we are taking steps to be prepared with a

combination of preventive and reactive measures.

(D Changes in supply and demand for steel

(2) Changes in raw matertal prices

(® Fluctuation in foreign exchange rates

@ Changes in fund procurement conditions

o Changes in the value of investment securities

(& Change in retirement benefit liabilities

() Changes in laws and regulations

® Changes in enwironmental laws and regulations

(@ Changes in management of business partners

() Defects in products and services

(D Accidents

(@ Disputes and litigation

{3 Breach of compliance

{i9) Deterioration in competitiveness

{5 Changes in political and economical systems and
regulations

(8 Natural disasters and conflicts
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j Lonsolidated balance sneets

Sumitomo Metat Industries, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands of U.S,

Millions of yen

dollars {Note 1) _

Assets As of Marc:l?:,' 2008 Marcr? (:}32? 2007 Marcli:o?gi: 2008
Current assets: ‘
Cash and time deposits (Notes 3 and 8).........ovvvvviiiviveriinens ¥ 16,733 ¥ 13,084 $ 167,010
Notes and accounts receivable (Note 20) -
TrAAE ...ooiii et e e be e 175,145 213,432 1,748,122
Other ........... s e RS, ST . 18,448 34,148 184,131
193,503 247,580 1,932,253
Allowance for doubtful accounts ... {203) {345) {(2,022)
I 193390 247,235 1,930,231
INventories (NOTE B) ..oovrieiiiiecec et 438,802 385,605 4,379,703
Deferred tax assets (Note 16) ........cccvirin e 18,965 19,317 189,292
Prepaid expenses and Other............ccccccoiiiiiin e 0,874 7,315 98,558
TOtal CUITENE ASSELS......mevrorreeereseoeoeeeoreeeeeeerenne S . 677,764 672,556 6,764,794
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 7 and 8):
Land (NOTE B) ...oociriiriirr e e snrrerr e e e ae e e be e s e 345,579 347,902 3,449,238
Buildings and STUCTUIrES.........oooiiiiirii ettt e 718,275 688,725 7,169,126
Machinery and equipment ... 2,170,430 2,103,502 21,663,138
Construction in Progress .............. s B ST e 106,721 115,433 1,065,188
TOBAL creroeeeeeseeeeseeeeeees e eeesseeese e eeereseeesreesesseesseeeeree e e 3,341,005 3255562 33,346,690
Accumulated depreciation..............cccoiiiiviii e (2,234,821) (2,209,284) (22,305,831)
Net property, plant and €QUIPMENE ...........oowv.ooorooveeeoomeeeersressrrns 1,106,184 1,046,278 11,040,859
investments and other assets:
Investment securities (NOTe d) .........ococvviiiiiicc e 337,064 324,380 3,364,248
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies... 267,031 229,737 2,665,248
Deferred tax assets {(NOte 16) ... 9,321 8,099 93,037
L8 (V= T OSSO 21,990 21,220 219,477
Allowance for doubtful acCoUNtS ....ooovieiiiiiiic e, {1,044} (713) (10,423)
fqial in:g_eétme_rltg anrcﬁthérésset-s._‘.......;..;.l - : ...... _‘ S i, 634,362 :582:7?23 B 6,331,587
TORAE ..ottt e e ¥2,418,310 ¥2,301,557 $24,137,240

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Thousands of U.S.

Milliors of yen dollars (Note 1) _
2007 2005 2007
Liabilities and Equity Asof  March31,2008 March 31,2007  March 31, 2008
Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings (Note 8) ....o..ooviiviiiiiiiicccrre e ¥ 189,051 ¥ 149,011 $ 1,886,921
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) ..., 90,597 140,906 904,248
Notes and accounts payable (Notes 8 and 20) -
TrAAE ..ot e e 331,846 340,457 3,312,169
ORBE oo e e 5,224 34,061 52,142
' S 337,070 374,518 3,364,311
Income taxes payable ... ... 52,087 62,371 519,884
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 16) ... 202 120 2,014
cher current FADIHHES. ... s 112,896 80,931 1,126,826
Total CUITENt HADHIIES...c.....eeereeersrecersseereeeoreeeresreessreeeeeeee e 781,903 807,857 7,804,204
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt fNOte 8) ...t e 631,357 470,956 6,301,600
Liability for employees’ retirement benefits (Note 9} ...............ooceinn 24,976 27,629 249,285
Liability for rebuilding furnaces .......ccoeecviiiiiiiici 224 4,260 2,239
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 16) ... 7,849 53,449 78,339
Deferred tax liabilities on land revaluation (Note B) ...............cccceeen. 6,976 7,000 69,628
Other long-term liabilities .....cocoooorvvr 15,722 5,708 156,917
T Total Iong-term FADIGIES «.....oovvvvvveeoeoeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeer oo 687,104 568902 6,858,008
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Notes 18, 19 and 21)
Equity {Notes 10 and 25);
Common stock, authorized 10,000,000,000 shares in 2007 and 2006;
issued, 4,805,974,238 shares in 2007 and 2008; ...l 262,072 262,072 2,615,754
Capital SUMPIUS ..ot s 61,830 61,897 617,124
Retained earmnings ........occooiriiiiie e 630,063 490,523 6,288,684
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ............................. 35,404 122,826 353,367
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting {Note 2(j)} ...... (1,162) (541) {11,600)
Land revaluation surplus (NO& 8) .....cccccvveiiiinrniricrrnn e 11,561 16,804 115,392
Foreign currency translation adjustments .......ccccocoeviiiie s (7,611) (1,349) {75,968)
~ Treasury stock, atcost - -
167,067,695 shares in 2007 and 165,450,538 shares in 2006 {90,211) (71,425) {900,394)
B — e 901,946 880,807 9,002,359
Minority interests (Note 2(j)) oo 47,357 43,991 472,669
T T08 BQUIY e 949,303 924,798 9,475,028
TORAL ..ottt ¥2418,310 ¥2,301,557 $24,137,240
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j Lonsolidated siatements or income

Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands of U.S.
For the years ended Millions of yen doliars (Note 1)
2007 2006 2007
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2008
Net sales (Notes 20 and 22) ..ot ¥1,744,573 ¥1,602,720 $17,412,646
Cost of sales (Notes 17, 20 and 22) . i 1,329,563 1,186,622 , 13,270,418
Gross profit ................... ettt 415010 446,098 4,142,228
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 17) ... 140,613 142,324, 1,403,462
Operating profit (NOte 22) .................... et 274,397 303,774 2,738,766
Other income (expenses): ‘
Interest and dividend INCOME .....ooviiiiii e 6,573 8,276 65,607
INtErest EXPENSE oo e e (13,466) {11,468) {134,407)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and
associated COMPEANIES ......ccooiieveiie s e e e e e e 41,919 41,804 ; 418,398
Dismantlement BXPENSES .. e e (6,944) {5,489) (69,308)
Gain on sales of investment securiies ... 6,904 4,508 68,908
Loss on disposal and sales of property, plant and equipment (Note 11) (11,185) (1,822) (111,642)
Impairment loss on fixed assets (Notes 7and 22)  .......ocoooiei, {6,438) {5,221) {64,259)
Loss on compensation for completed construction (Note 15) ............ {6,200) {61,882)
Gain on business restructuring (Note 12) ..o, 9,071
Gain on changes of equity interests in associated companies (Note 13) 16,263
Loss on business restructuring (Note 14} ... (2,757)
lLoss on revaluation of real estate forsale ... {5,894)
OhEr, NBE et (4,261) (9,220) (42,529)
© Other INCOME (EXPENSES), NB.cevvricrverrrireverrcesicororerirresrn - 6,902 37,951 68,886
Income before income taxes and minority interests ........................ 281,299 341,725 2,807,652
Income taxes (Note 16):
LT =12 A PR (88,055) (106,780) (878,879)
BT = = o [OOSR {8,365) {5,490) (83,493}
 TOtAl INCOME LAXES vveovveeeereereesoeresereesereee o sesesss e sees e (96,420)  (112,280)  (962,372)
MINOKTY INTEreStS .. ..o {4,331) (2,719) (43,227)
NEt INCOMIE .. e et e enaa e e een ¥ 180,548 ¥ 226,726 $ 1,802,053
Yen U.S. dollars {Note 1)
2007 2006 2007

For the years ended March 31,2008  March 31,2007  March 31, 2008

Per share of common stock (Notes 2(s)and 24):

BASIC MO INCOMIE ooooeeeeeee e et eee et e e e e e e e e e e e aeressees ¥ 3943 ¥ 47.89 § 0.39
[BI1IV1 (Yo MaT=t ] a1olo) 211 NEVRCTRUTRUOT OO ORURTO PPN - 47.87 -
Cash dividends applicable to the year .........cccccccoovveiiiiiinvieiienns _ 10.00 8.00 0.10

See Notes 1o Conselidated Financial Statements.
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j Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands B Millians of yen
Outstanding Urrealized gan Deferrad oss Foraign
numbex of on avalable-  on derivatives Land curency
shares of Commen Capital Ratainad for-sale under hedge  revaluation  translation Treasury Minonty Total
o ... sommon s&ock sto_ck— surplus earnlngs sea.um accomtm su'plus adlustmems stockﬂ Total L _lmarasts egEit_y_ _
Balance, April 1, 2006 ... 4,802,168 ¥262072 ¥ 61,897 ¥300,588 ¥ 84,385 ¥ 16,061 ¥ (3591) ¥ (545} ¥720,8567 ¥ 720,867
Reclassified balance as of ¥ 41,305 41305
April 1,2006 (Note 2(j})
Cash dividends, 38417) (38417 (38.417)
¥8.00 per share.........
Net income «.cccvveeeaann. 226,726 226,726 226,726
Decrease due to exclusion
of certain subsidiaries from
consolidation and certain
associated companies &3 {63) 63}
Bonuses to directors and
corporate auditors ...... (200} (200) (200}
Net increase in
treasury stock  ......... (161 ,644) (70,880) (70,880) (70,880)
Reversal of land
revaluation surplus ... 1,889 1,889 1,889
Net change in the year... 38441 ¥ (541) 743 2, 242 40, 885 2.686 4357

Balance, March 31, 2007 4640524 262072 61 897 490,523 122,826 (541) 16804 (1,349) (71 425} 880807 43,99 9‘24798

Cash dividends,

¥9.50 per share......... (43,598) 43,598) 43,596)
Net income ......covoeea 180,548 180,548 180,548
Purchase of treasury stock (97,738) (70,768) (70,768) (70,768)
Disposal of treasury stock 96,121 67 (2221) 51,982 49694 49,694
Reversal of land

revaluation surplus...... 4,811 45811 4,811
Net change in the year (87,422 621 {243 {6262 {99,548) 3366 (96,182)

Balance, March 3, 2008 4638907 ¥262,072 ¥ 61,830 ¥630,063 ¥ 35404 ¥ (1,162) ¥ 11,561 ¥ (7,611) ¥(90,211) ¥901,946 ¥ 47,357 ¥949,303

Thousands of U.$.doltars (Nata 1)

Urmaﬁzsdm Oeferrad loss Foreign
on avafiabie-  on derivatives Land currency
Common Capital Retained for-sale under hedle  revaluation  translation Treasury Minoety Tota)
_ o o stock  suplus eamngs  secuites  accoting  sumlus  adustments  siock Totl imterests equity

Balance, April 1, 2007,................. $2 615,754 $617 BOO $4.895900 $1295927 § (5,406) $ 167,722 § (13,465 $(712 893) $B.791,359 $439,074 $9,230,443
Cash dividends,¥9.50 per share ... {435,159 {435,152 {435,152
Netincome .........coovveieiennennes 1,802,053 1,802,053 1,802,053
Purchase of treasury stock ............ {706,340} (706,340 {706,340
Disposal of treasury stock ............ 676) (22,166} 518839 495997 495997
Reversal of iand revaluation surplus 48019 48019 48019
Net change in the year ............... (872560) (6,194) (52330) (62,503 (993587) 33,505 (959992
Balance, March 31,2008 ........... $2,615,754 $617,124 $6,288684 § 353,367 $(11,600) $ 115,392 $ (75,968) ${900,394) $9,002359 $ 472,669 $9475,028

See Notes to Consolidatéd Fi'n;ncial Statements.
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l consoligated statements of Lasn FIOws

Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

Thousands of U .

MiLions of yen o dodtars (Note 1)
2007 2006 2007
For the years ended March 31,2008 March 31,2007  March 31, 2008
Operating activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests ..., ¥ 281,299 ¥ 341,725 § 2,807,652
Adijustments for:
INCOME taxes Paid .. .vvovereiii e (96,872} {139,094) {966,883)
Depreciation and amortization .cccoooeveeeeiiiiiie e 103,620 73,381 1,034,238
Allowance for doubtful 2ccoUNtS .o e 95 (149) 946
Liability for employees’ retirement benefits ... {2,967) (4,197} {29,613)
Liability for rebuilding furnaces ..o {4,035) 25 (40,277)
Interest and divIdend INGOME ..ot {6,573) (8,276) (65,607)
INtErest EXPENSE ..ovviiiiiiiiie e 13,466 11,468 134,407
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and
ASSOCIAtEA COMPANIES . -vcrereeirereerrerieerrere et eescnsaaetre s aseeemaenesras {41,919) (41,804) {418,398}
Gain on sales of investment securities  ..............n, (6,904) {4,508) (68,908)
Gain on busingss restructuring ..o, {9,071)
Gain on changes of equity interests in associated companies ............ (16,263)
Loss on disposal and sales of property, plant and equipment ............ 11,185 1,922 111,642
Impairment foss on fixed aSSELS ..o e 6,438 5,221 64,259
Loss on compensation for completed construction ... 6,200 61,882
LOSS 0N hUSINESS FESIUCTUFNG «rvvveaenireiiii i e eeeeees 2,757
Loss on revaluation of real estate forsale ... 5,894
Changes in assets and liabilities-
Decrease (increase) inreceivables ... 40,019 {6,348) 399,433
INCrEase N INVENTOMES .o eeee et er e e err et et e aarannseaeeran {52,552) (37,246) (524,528)
Increase (decrease) in payables ......ccccocvi i 798 {8,212) 7,967
OhEr, NBE oot (21,255) 4,609 (21 .114)
_ Net cash prowded by operating actlwtles e 230,043 171,834 2 296,068

Investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, equipment a

nd other assets ......ooceeiiiinnns

Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and other assets ......
Purchase of securities for investment purposes  ........cccooovviivniines
Proceeds from sales of securities for investment purposes «....................

Increase in investments in capital ............
Loans made ......coccevevivnnieiciiciic e,
Collections of I0ans .........ccccvieiniiiiiniiiiann,
Interest and dividends received ...............
_Other,net oo v eaaae

Financing activities:

Net cash used in investing activities

.............................................

(166,199) (127,107} {1,658,839)

16,206 5,958 161,757
(156,626) (31,325)  (1,563,288)
8,971 9,457 89,541
(6,930) (55) (69,170)
(4,846) (4,655) (48,373)
18,601 18,787 185,657
16,186 16,981 161,553
321 3024 39203

(274,316)  (108,935) (2,737,959}

Increase (decrease} in short-term borrowings, net ............oevciiiniieeees

Proceeds from long-term debt  ...............
Repayments of long-term debt ...............
Receipt from minority shareholders .........
Interest paid ...occovinini
Purchase of treasury stock ...........oeeeil.
Proceeds from disposal of treasury stock

Dividends paid ....cccoeevviiiiniemrenns

Decrease in obligation to retumn collateral under security loan agreement, net

Other, Net ..o

44,127 (22,378) 440,436
236,562 207,269 2,361,135
(142,732)  (147,620) (1,424,613)
134 556 1,341
(13,788) (11,504)  (137,614)
(70,773) (70,881)  (706,384)

49,694 495,998
(43,601) (38,417) (435,179)
(10,000) (99,810}

(871}, (482),_  (8,719)_
48,752 (83,457 486,591

Foreign currency translation adjustments on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents ................0 ...

— 1830) 685 (8,280)
3849 (19,873] 36,420

Cash and cash equivalents increase by elimination of

consolidated subsidiaries ...........oooorii e 208
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ........... e 13,021 32,596 129,961
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year INGIE 3) ...oocooovvevrvvvvnrinniranenes 16,670 ¥ 13.0°71'% 166,381

Non-cash investing and financing activities {(Note 23):

Assets decreased by business separation ...
Liabilities decreased by business separation

14,408
11,688

See Notes to Consglidated Financial Statements.
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| Notes to Consolidated Financiail statements

Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007.

01. Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial staternents of Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd. {“Sumitomo Metals”) have
been prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Law
{formerly, the Japanese Securities and Exchange Law) and its related accounting regulations and in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to application and dis-
closure requirements of Internationat Financial Reporting Standards.

in preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been
made to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more
familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, certain reclassifications have been made in the FY2006 (ended March
31, 2007) financial statements to conform to the classifications used in FY2007 {(ended March 31, 2008}.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the currency of the country in which Sumitomo
Metals is incorporated and operates. The transtations of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are includ-
ed solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥100.19 to $1, the pre-
vailing exchange rate at March 31, 2008. Such translations should not be construed as representations that the
Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

02. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

| (a) Consolidation

| The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2008 include the accounts of Sumitomo Metals and its 71 significant
(70 in 2007} subsidiaries {together, the “Group”). Under the control or influence concept, those companies in which
Sumitomo Metals, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are fully consolidated, and those compa-
nies over which the Group has the ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method.
Investments in one {one in 2007) unconsolidated subsidiary and 33 (31 in 2007} associated companies are
accounted for by the equity methed.

Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies are stated at cost. If the
equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these companies, the effect on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements would not be material.

The excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition is being amortized principally over a period of 5 years (20 years in FY2006).

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All material unre-
alized profits included in assets resulting from transactions within the Group are eliminated.

{b) Cash equivalents
Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are readily convertible into cash and that are exposed to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents include time deposits, certificate of deposits, commercial paper and bond funds, all of which
mature or become due within three months of the date of acquisition.

{c} Inventories
Inventories are stated principally at cost, determined by the average method.

{d) Marketable and investment securities
Markstable and investrent securities are classified and accounted for, depending on management's intent, as avail-
able-for-sale securities, which are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applicable
taxes, reported in a separate component of equity.
Non-marketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the moving-average method.
For other than temporary declines in fair value, investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a

charge to income.
Annual Report 2008 ﬁ
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of Sumitomo Metals and its consolidated domestic sub-
sidiaries is computed substantially by the declining-balance method at rates based on the usage of the assets over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, while the straight-line method is applied to the buildings of Sumitomeo Metals
and its domestic subsidiaries, and all property, plant and equipment of consolidated overseas subsidiaries.
Sumitomo Metals and its domestic subsidiaries changed their depreciation methods over property, plant and equip-
ment acquired on and after April 1, 2007 in accordance with the revised corporate tax law, which is effective for fis-
cal years beginning on and after April 1, 2007. This treatment decreased income before income taxes and
minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2008 by ¥3,346 million ($33,397 thousand).

Property, plant and equipment of Sumitomo Metals and its domestic subsidiaries acquired before March 31,
2007 had been depreciated up to 95% of acquisition cost with 5% of residual value carried under the former cor-
porate tax law. In accordance with the revised corporate tax law, however, such 5% portion of property, plant and
equipment is systematically depreciated over 5 years starting in the following year in which the carrying value of
property, plant and equipment reaches 5% of the acquisition cost. This treatment decreased income before income
taxes and minority interests for the year ended March 31, 2008 by ¥11,067 million ($110,456 thousand). The use-
ful lives are principally 31 years for buildings and structures and 14 years for machinery and equipment.

{f) Long-lived assets

The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable. An impairment loss would be recognized if the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to
result from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be
measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net sell-
ing price at disposition.

(9) Stock and bond issue costs
Stock and bond issue costs are charged to income as incurred.

{h) Employees’ retirement benefits
Sumitomo Metals and its domestic subsidiaries account for employees’ retirement benefits based on the projected
benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance sheet date.

(i) Liability for rebuilding furnaces

Blast furnaces and hot blast stoves, including related machinery and equipment, require periodic repairs and replace-
ment of substantial components. A liability for rebuilding furnaces is provided for the estimated future costs of such
work based on past experience.

{j) Presentation of equity

On December 9, 2005, the ASBJ published a new accounting standard for presentation of equity. Under this
accounting standard, certain items which were previously presented as components of assets and liabilities are now
presented as components of equity. Such items include stock acquisition rights, minority interests, and any deferred
gain or loss on derivatives accounted for under hedge accounting. The Group has been following this standard since
FY 2006 (ended March 31, 2007) and the balances of such items as of April 1, 2006 were reclassified as separate
components of equity in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(k) Revenue recognition for long-term construction contracts
Sales and related costs of long-term construction contracts (for which the term is longer than one year and the con-
tract amount is over ¥100 million) were accounted for by the percentage-of-completion method.

(/) Research and development costs
Research and development costs are charged to expenses as incurred.

(m) Leases
Under Japanese accounting standards for leases, finance leases that deem to transfer ownership of the leased prop-
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lease transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the notes to the lessee's financial
statements.

(n) Consumption taxes
Consumption tax generally withheld upan sales, as well as that paid for purchases of goods or services, is
recorded as a liability or an asset, and is excluded from the relevant revenue, costs or expenses.

(o} Income taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included in the consolidated statements
of income. The asset and liability approach is used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of
assets and liabilities. Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently enacted tax laws to the temporary dif-
ferences.

(p) Foreign currency transactions

All short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translat-
ed into Japanese yen at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The foreign exchange gains and losses from
translation are recognized in the statement of income to the extent that they are not hedged by forward
exchange contracts.

{(q) Foreign currency financial statements
The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into Japanese yen at the cur-
rent exchange rates as of the balance sheet date except for equity, which is translated at the historical
exchange rate.
Differences arising from such translation were shown as “Foreign currency translation adjustments” in a sep-

arate component of equity.

Revenue and expense accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at the current
exchange rates as of the balance sheet date.

{r) Derivatives and hedging activities
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and fareign
exchange rates. Foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps, currency swaps and others are utilized
by the Group to reduce foreign currency exchange and interest rate risks. The Group does not hold derivatives for
trading or speculation purposes.

Derivative financial instruments and foreign currency transactions are classified and accounted for as follows:
1) all derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities and measured at fair value, and gains or losses on deriv-
ative transactions are recognized in the statement of income and 2} for derivatives used for hedging purposes, if
derivatives qualify for hedge accounting because of high correlation and effectiveness between the hedging instru-
ments and the hedged items, gains or losses on derivatives are deferred until maturity of the hedged transactions.

The foreign exchange forward contracts employed to hedge foreign exchange exposures for export sales are
measured at the fair value and the unrealized gains or losses are recognized in income. Forward contracts applied
for forecasted {or committed) transactions are also measured at the fair value but the unrealized gains or losses are
deferred until the underlying transactions are completed.

The interest rate swaps which qualify for hedge accounting and mest specific matching criteria are not
remeasured at market value but the differential paid or received under the swap agreements are recognized and
included in interest expense or income.

{s) Per share information

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to commeon shareholders, by the

weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.
Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities were exercised or con-

verted intc common stock. Diluted net income per share of common stock assumes full conversion of the out-

standing convertible notes and bonds at the beginning of the year (or at the time of issuance) with an applicable

adjustment for related interest expense, net of tax, and full exercise of outstanding warrants. Diluted net
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diluting effects.
Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of income are dividends
applicable to the respective years including dividends to be paid after the end of the year

(t) Business combination and business separation

In October 2003, the Business Accounting Council (the “BAC") issued a Statement of Opinion, *Accounting for
Business Combinations,” and on December 27, 2005, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No. 7, “Accounting
Standard for Business Separations,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 10, "Guidance for Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations and Business Separations.” The new accounting pronouncements for business combination
and business separation have been effective since FY2006 (ended March 31, 2007).

The accounting standard for business combinations allows companies to apply the pooling of interests
method of accounting only when certain specific criteria are met such that the business combination is essentially
regarded as a uniting-of-interests.

For business combinations that do not meet the uniting-of-interests criteria, the business combination is con-
sidered to be an acquisition and the purchase method of accounting is required. This standard also prescribes the
accounting for combinations of entities under common contro!l and for joint ventures. Goodwill, including negative
goodwill, is to be systematically amortized over 20 years or less, but is also subject to an impairment test.

Under the accounting standard for business separations, in a business separation where the interests of the
investor no longer continue and the investment is settled, the difference between the fair value of the considera-
tion received for the transferred business and the book value of net assets transferred to the separated business
is recognized as a gain or loss on business separation in the statement of income. In a business separation where
the interests of the investor continue and the investment is not settied, no such gain or loss on business separa-
tion is recognized.

{u)New accounting pronouncements

Measurement of Inventories

Under generally accepted accounting principles in Japan (“Japanese GAAP,”) inventories are currently measured
either by the cost method, or at the lower of cost or market. On July 5, 2006, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement
No.9, “Accounting Standard for Measurement of Inventories,” which is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after
April 1, 2008 with early adoption permitted. This standard requires that inventories held for sale in the ordinary
course of business be measured at the lower of cost or net selling value, which is defined as the selling price less
additional estimated manufacturing costs and estimated direct selling expenses. The replacement cost may be used
in place of the net selling value, if appropriate. The standard alsc requires that inventories held for trading purposes
be measured at the market price.

Lease Accounting

On March 30, 2007, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement No.13, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions,” which
revised the existing accounting standard for lease transactions issued on June 17, 1993. The revised accounting
standard for lease transactions is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2008 with early adoption
permitted for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2007.

Under the existing accounting standard, finance leases that deem to transfer ownership of the leased property
to the lessee are to be capitalized, while other finance leases are permitted to be accounted for as operating lease
transactions if certain “as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the note to the lessee’s financial statements.

The revised accounting standard requires that all finance lease transactions shall be capitalized recognizing lease
assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet.

Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Under Japanese GAAP, a company currently can use the financial statements of its foreign subsidiaries which have
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in their respective jurisdictions for its
consolidation process unless they are clearly unreasonable.

On May 17, 2006, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force (PITF) No.18, “Practical Solution on
Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements.™ The
new standard prescribes: 1) the accounting policies and procedures applied to a parent company and its subsidiaries
for similar transactions and events under similar circumstances should in principle be unified for the preparation
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03.

of the consoltdated financial statements, 2} financial statements prepared Dy 1oreign supsialanes In accoraance win
either International Financial Reporting Standards or the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
tentatively may be used for the consolidation process. In that case, however, the following items should be adjust-
ed in the consolidation process when they are material, so that net income is accounted for in accordance with
Japanese GAAP;

(1) Amortization of goodwill

(2) Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans recognized outside profit or foss

(3) Capitalization of intangible assets arising from development phases

{4) Fair value measurement of investment properties, and the revatuation model for property, plant,

equipment and intangible assets
{5) Retrospective application when accounting policies are changed
{6) Accounting for net income attributable to a minority interest

The new task force is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2008 with early adoption permitted.

Construction Contracts

Under the current Japanese GAAP, either the completed-contract method or the percentage-of-completion
method is permitted to account for construction contracts. On December 27, 2007, the ASBJ published a new
accounting standard for construction contracts. Under this accounting standard, the construction revenue and con-
struction costs should be recognized by the percentage-of-completion method, if the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably. A company can reliably estimate the outcome when tetal construction revenue,
total construction costs and the stage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet date are reliably measured.
if the outcome of a construction contract cannot be reliably estimated, the completed-contract method shall be
applied. When it is probable that total construction costs will exceed total construction revenue, an estimated loss
on the contract should be immediately recognized. This standard is applicable to construction contracts and soft-
ware development contracts and effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2009 with early adoption is
permitted for fiscal years beginning on or after December 27, 2007.

Reconciliation to Cash and Cash Equivalents

The reconciliation of cash and time deposits in the balance sheets to cash and cash equivalents in the statements
of cash flows as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Thousands of

. Millions of yen o _. U.5. dollars
2007 2006 2007
e o _ .. __.hsof March3i, 2008 March31,2007 March 31, 2008
Cash and time deposits per the balance sheets ....................... ¥ 16,733 ¥ 13,084 $ 167,010
Time deposits with original maturities of more than three months {63} (63) {629)
Cash and cash equivalents per the statements of cash flows ...... ¥ 16,670 ¥ 13,021 $ 166,381
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U4. Marketable and Investment Securities

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities as of March 31, 2008 and
2007, were as follows:

Millions of yen

2007 - . . .
Unrealized Unrealized Fair
As of March 31, 2008 Cost gains losses value

Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:

Equity securities ...........ccoevvee e ¥ 265960 ¥ 57,854 ¥ 7,007 ¥ 316,807
2006 Miklions of yen
sacfarcn 31,2007 o Vims U o
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ...........cccooeee i ¥ 114572 ¥ 187,845 ¥ 124 ¥ 302,293
Thousands of
2007 - ced O
A of March 1, 200 o T Up
Securities classified as:
Available-for-sale:
EQUItY SECUMHES .......vveeervevireerrerereraeas $2,654,565 $ 577,440 $ 69,938 $3,162,067

Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is not readily determinable as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, were
as follows:

Carrving amount
" Thousands of
Milions of yen . _U.8. doliars
2007 2006 2007
As of  March 31,2008 March 31,2067 March 31,2008

Available-for-sate:

EQUItY SBOURIES .ottt s e e e e s eeeneens ¥ 19,957 ¥ 20,290 $ 199,187
Other........... 00O PO SRRSO 300 1,797 2,994
TOAL e ¥ 20,257 ¥ 22087 $ 202,181

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were ¥8,410
million {$83,937 thousand} and ¥6,043 million, respectively. Gross realized gains and losses on these sales,
computed on the moving average cost basis, were ¥7,871million ($78,556 thousand) and ¥51million ($509
thousand), respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2008, and gross realized gains and losses on these sales were
¥3,590 million and ¥2 million, respectively, for the year ended March 31, 2007.

05. Inventories
Inventories as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Thousands of

Milians of yen _ U.S. dollars
2007 2006 2007
e Asof _March 31,2008  March 31,2007 _ March 31,2008
FiNIShed ProdUCES  vverreiiiieeiieeeceie ettt sr s ie s s esaaesee s ¥ 62815 ¥ 52363 $ 626,962
Others v TP ERRPTPTS PR 375,987 333,242 3,752,741
TORAD  eeeeeeeeeee et ¥ 438,802 ¥ 385605 $4,379,703
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U0. Land Revaluation

Under the “Law of Land Revaluation,” certain consolidated subsidiaries elected a one-time revaluation of their own-
use land to a value based on real estate appraisal information as of March 31, 2002. The resulting land revalua-
tion excess represents unrealized appreciation of land and is stated, net of income taxes, as a component of equi-
ty. There was no effect on the statements of income. Continuous readjustment is not permitted unless the fand value
subsequently declines significantly such that the amount of the decline in value should be removed from the land
revatuation excess account and related deferred tax liabilities. The reversal of iand revaluation surplus is
charged directly to retained earnings in equity when the revaluated land is sold or impaired. As of March 31, 2008
and 2007, the carrying amount of the land after the above one-time revaluation exceeded the market value by ¥6,482
million {$64,696 thousand) and ¥6,583 million, respectively.

07. Long-lived Assets

08.

The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of March 31, 2008. Each company is categorized as a
cash-generating unit, to which assets of Sumitomo Metals belong. To compute the present value of future cash
flows, the discount rate (weighted average cost of capital: §%) of Sumitomo Metals was used.

The Group recognized an impairment loss of ¥6,438 million ($64,259 thousand) for the year ended March 31,
2008 and ¥5,221 million for the year ended March 31, 2007 as other expense. The loss for the year ended March
31, 2008 was resulted from the impairment of certain rental assets and an idle immovable estate and the loss for
the year ended March 31, 2007 was resulted from the impairment of certain rental assets.

The components of impairment losses for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Theusands of

Millions of yan . .S, dollars.
2007 2006 2007
For the years ended  March 31, 2008 March 31,2007  March 31, 2008
[ =T o 2R ¥ 6,438 ¥ 5,221 $ 64,259

Short-term Borrowings and Long-term Debt
Short-term borrowings as of March31, 2008 and 2007, consisted of the following:

Thousands of U.5.
Millions of yen dollars

2007 2006 2007
Asof  March 31,2008 March 31, 2097 March 31, 2008

Bank ioans, with an average interest at 1.3% and 1.1%
as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively .......cccceeeoiieennnnnnn, ¥ 170,051 ¥ 139,011 $1,697.281
Obligation to return collateral under security ioan agreement,
with an average interest at 1.0% and 0.7% as of March31,2008
and 2007, resSpectively oo 10,000
Commercial Paper with an average interest at 0.6% as of March 31,

19,000 189,640
¥ 189,051 ¥ 149,011  §$1,886,921
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S.de’ars
2007 2006 2007
Asof March31,2008 March 31,2007 March 31, 2008

Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies, with

interest principally at 1.5%, due through 2016 .......coeeiveiiiiinnn, ¥ 528679 ¥ 442813 $5,276,768
0.84% to 3.07% yen bonds, due through 2019 ..................... 164,659 134,659 1,643,463
Lease obligations, with interest principally at 1.8%, due through
2D i s 27,116 32,890 270,645
Floating rate yen bonds, due 2008........... gL ATt 1,500 - 1,500 14,972
' 721,954 611,862 7,205,848
Less current POrHION «oiovviivirimreiiiiiiei i e (90,597) (140,906) (904,248)
Long-term debt, less current portion ..o W ¥ 470,956 m

The annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2008, were as follows:

Year ending March 31 ) Mitions of yen TJ?AS:?!:: ' .
2009 oottt s e ettt e e b et e e e e enne e ¥ 90597  $ 904,248
20T D e i et e st e enaa e aen 101,950 1,017,570
21 3 1 OSSO PO PO UO OOV U OPOT RO 140,722 1,404,549
2012 oottt ettt ettt 131,271 . 1,310,218
2013 oottt na ettt 114,684 . 1,144,670
2014 and thereafter ............ccverivvniriien: s SRS 142,730 i 1,424,593
TOMAD ettt ekttt eee s ¥ 721,954 . $7,205848

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for short-term bomrowings of ¥200 million ($1,996 thousand)
and long-term debt of ¥3,429 million {$34,221 thousand) and notes and accounts payable of ¥1,785 million
($17,812 thousand) as of March 31, 2008, were as follows:

Millions of yen Thagsands of
Cash and time ABPOSILS soooerr e ¥ 3 | $ 30
propeny, plant gnd eqqipment .............. RS SRR 18,609 i 185,740
TOLAL - ovrevremrrereren e et ettt e e e e it e e s e e et e s ea s s e e aan ¥ 18,612 $ 185,770 .

09. Employees’ Retirement Benefits

Employees whose service with Sumitomo Metals and certain consolidated subsidiaries is terminated are, under most
circumstances, entitled to retirement and pension benefits determined by reference to basic rates of pay at the time
of termination, length of service, and conditions under which the termination occurs. They consist of a lump-sum
retirement payment plan, a tax-qualified pension scheme and a defined contribution pension. In certain cases, the
employee is entitled to greater payment. The funds for the annuity payments are entrusted to an outside
trustee.
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The liability for employees’ retirement benefits as ot March 41, 2006 ana ZUU/ consisted o1 ine folliowing:

Thousands of
. Miliens of yen . U,S,_dpl_lars
2007 2008 2007

Asof  March 31,2008  March 31, 2007 March 31, 2008
Projected benefit obligation........ccoviininii s ¥ 200,108 ¥ 208,867 § 1,997,291
Fair value of plan @ssets .........ccureviiiiiiiee e (161,205) {173,255) (1,608,996)
Unrecognized actuarial 108S........cocviiiiiriieniiiiimee s {16,812) (2,916) {167,803)
Unrecognized prior Service oSt (65) {197) (649)
Bt HABIlEY .- e 22,026 25,499 219,843
Prepaid Pension COSIS ..o iirr e 2,950 2,030 29,442
Liability for employees’ retirement benefits ................oveeee ¥ 24976 ¥ 27529 $ 249,285

The compaonents of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Thousands of
. _ Millions of yen U.S. doltars
2007 2006 2007

) o For the years ended  March 31, 2008 AMarch 31,2007 March 31, 2008
SOIVICE COSE «evrrevrerreeramrmmererrrssernnnnresssnssaasesaeaeaeeeeaaetsstatesaaneees ¥ 7,175 ¥ 7,164 $ 71,617
Interest COST oo 3,053 3,151 30,473
Expected return on plan assets .....c.ovvvvmeeeeioiieinee (2,010) {1,957) (20,071)
Recognized actuarial JoSS . ...oovveeiiiiiriinnnnease s 3,327 3,411 33,209
Amortization of prior service Cost ... 1 1 11
Net periodic benefit COSIS  «v.vviveviriiiiiiiei v ¥ 11,546 ¥ 11,770 $ 115,239

In addition to the costs above, greater payment of ¥305 million ($3,042 thousand) was accounted for the year
ended March 31, 2008, and ¥1,615 miliion for the year ended March 31, 2007, respectively. Payments for
defined contribution pension plans for the year ended March 31, 2008, were ¥2,163 million ($21,590 thousand} and
for the year ended March 31,2007, were ¥1,505 million.

Assumptions used for the years ended March 31,2008 and 2007 were mainly set forth as follows:

2007 2006
) ) For the years ended March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007
[ ][ToTo 10101 4 £= 1 1= IR U PSP 1.5% 1.5%
Expected rate of return on plan assets .....c.ooenii 1.5% 1.5%
Amortization period of prior service Cost ......cocoi 12 years 12 years
Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss ... 11 years 11 years

Equity

Since May 1, 2006, Japanese companies have been subject to the new corporate law of Japan (the
“Companies Act,”) which reformed and replaced the Commercial Code of Japan. The significant provisions in the
Companies Act that affect financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

(a) Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the year-
end dividend upon resolution at the shareholders’ meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria such as; (1)
having the Board of Directors, {2) having independent auditors, (3) having the Board of Corporate Auditors, and (4)
the term of service of the directors is prescribed as one year rather than two years of normal term by its articles of
incorporation, the Board of Directors may declare dividends, except for dividends in kind (non-cash assets,) at any
time during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. Sumitomo Metals meets
all the above criteria. The Gompanies Act permits companies to distribute dividends in kind to shareholders sub-
ject to a certain limitation and additional requirements.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

semiannual intenm dividends may also oe paid once a year upon resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles
of incorporation of the company stipulated so. The Companies Act provides certain limitations on the amounts avail-
able for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution
to the shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be maintained at no less than ¥3 miliion.

(b) Increases, decreases and transfer of common stock, reserve and surplus

The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (a
component of retained earnings) or as additional paid-in capital (& component of capital surplus) depending on the
equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until the total of the aggregate amount of legal reserve
and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of the common stock. Under the Companies Act, the total amount of addi-
tional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without limitation. The Companies Act aiso provides that
commaon stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and retained earnings can be
transferred among the accounts under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

(c) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock and dispose of such treasury
stock by resolution of the Board of Directors. The amount of treasury stock to be purchased cannot exceed the
amount available for distribution to the shareholders and the amount is determined by specific formula. Under the
Companies Act, stock acquisition rights, which were previously presented as a liability, are now presented as a sep-
arate component of equity. The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both ireasury
stock acquisition rights and treasury stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate com-
ponent of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

Loss on Disposal and Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment
A foss of ¥11,185 million ($111,642 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2008, mainly consisted of loss on dis-
posa! of machinery and equipment on No.2 Blast Furnace of Sumitomo Metals (at Kashima Steel Works) and loss
on disposal of machinery and equipment of a consolidated subsidiary.

A loss of ¥1,922 million for the year ended March 31, 2007, consisted of loss on sales of land of a consolidat-
ed subsidiary.

Gain on Business Restructuring
There was no gain on business restructuring for the year ended March 31, 2008.

A gain of ¥9,071 millicn for the year ended March 31, 2007, mainly consisted of the gains resulting from
exchanges of equity interests in associated companies because of the separation of a consolidated subsidiary.
{See Note 23}

Gain on changes of equity interests in associated companies

There was no gain on changes of equity interests in associated companies for the year ended March 31, 2008.
A gain of ¥16,263 million for the year ended March 31, 2007, resulted from the gain on changes of equity inter-
ests in associated companies in conjunction with the issue of new shares.

Loss on Business Restructuring

There was no loss on business restructuring for the year ended March 31, 2008,
A loss of ¥2,757 millien for the year ended March 31, 2007, mainly resulted from the extraordinary payment of
employees' retirement benefits in conjunction with the business separations.

Loss on compensation for completed construction

A loss of ¥6,200 million ($61,882 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2008, resulted frorn the entrusted oper-
ation on a certain completed construction,
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10. Income Taxes

Sumitomo Metals and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes which, in
the aggregate, resulted in normal effective statutory tax rates of approximately 40.6% for the years ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Thousands of
_ Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2007 2006 2007
Asof March 31,2008 March 31,2007  March 31, 2008

Deferred tax assets:

Fixed assets, inventories and other assets ..o ¥ 24938 ¥ 23729 $ 248,905
Employses’ retirement benefits ... 19,857 19,926 198,197
BONUSES PAyable .....oooviiiiiiiri e 8,660 8,497 86,439
Enterprise taxes payable ... 4,240 4,750 42,319
OUNEE ettt s bttt ertara et eae e n e 13,891 21,995 138,661
VAIUAHON AlOWANGE .+t e eeeee et e ietsiteeerersass s aeeeeanreenneearaasns (12,203) {14,099) (121,803)
" DEFEITEG tAX ASSELS «..vrrvrrrrrrrsenrssssssnsress e ¥ 59383 ¥ 64798 $ 592,718
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities .................. ¥ (18,336) ¥ (72,524) $ (183,021)
Reserve of the Special Taxation Measures Law of Japan ......... (9,400) (6,454) (93,818)
Employees’ retirement benefit trusts ..o (7,199) (7,199) (71,855)
(0117 SUTUT TR OO OO P PP U RO UOR T PRUI : (4,213) (4,774) {(42,048)
' Deferred tax aDItEs ........orrrirrroeeessssmnieeeennneeeenees ¥ (39,148) ¥ (90,951) $ (390,742)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilites) .voeveerviiiiiii ¥ 20,235 ¥ (26,153) $ 201,976

The reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected
in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31,2008 and 2007, were as fol-

lows:
2007 2008
B For the years ended March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007
Normal effective statutary taxX rate  ......coocooviiinrnsie e 40.6% 40.6%
Equity in eamings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies ... (6.1) (5.0)
Gain on changes of equity interests in associated companies  ...................o (3.0)
ORI, MBE weeveeiir it eecie ettt e s {0.2) 0.3
Actual effective tAX FAEE  «orevrr e 34.3% 32.9%

17. Research and Development Costs

Research and development costs charged to expenses for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as fol-

lows:
Thougands of
Miltions of yen u.S. dollars
2007 2006 2007
For the years ended  March 31,2008  March 31,2007  March 31, 2008
. e e bbbt Kok
Research and development COSES ..o ¥ 20,103 ¥ 18,763 $ 200,645
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19.

Leases

(a) Finance leases as lessee
Pro forma information of leased property, which principally consists of equipment, on an “as if capitalized” basis for the vears
ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Thousands of

B R V-Jiili@sofyen R o . . ‘y.S._dqtlars v .
2007 2006 2007
For the year ended March 31, 2008 For the year ended March 31, 2007 For the year ended March 31, 2008

) M:t;‘:ﬂ”’;ni"d ome Tota Mx:mmm " Other Totai M:"q*:’;?;{'d " Gther Totd

Acqguisition gost ... ¥ 9,869 ¥ 343 ¥ 10212 ¥ 10,310 ¥ 256 ¥ 10,566 $ 98,510 $ 3,424 $101,934
Less accumulated

depreciation ............ 5,061 156 5,217 5,243 134 5377 50,518 1,558 52,076

Netleased properly ... ¥ 4808 ¥ 187 ¥ 4995 ¥ 5067 ¥ 122 ¥ 5163 § 47,002 & 10866 § 49,858

Depreciation expense... ¥ 1,860 ¥ 1,747 $ 18,560

The total lease payment and cbligation under finance leases for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were
as follows:

Thousands ot

Millions of yen A U.S. doliars
2007 2008 2007

o . o o ) For the years ended  March 39, 2008 March 31,2007 _ March 31, 2008
Total lease PaymMent ...t ¥ 1,860 ¥ 1,747 $ 18,560
Obiigation at March 31,

Due within ONe YEAr ...ovoeviriiiicce e ¥ 1,653 ¥ 1,730 $ 16,497

Due .j:tfteir ONe Year .............. TR R 3,342 B 73,459 33,361
Total 0bligation  ..eeovviriii ¥ 4,995 ¥ 5189 $ 49,858

The imputed interest expense portion is included in the above pro forma information. Depreciation expense which
is not reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of income is computed by the straight-line
method.

(b) Operating leases as lessee
The minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating leases as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen LS. dollars

2007 20068 2007
Asof March3%,2008 March 31,2007  March 31, 2008

Obiigation at March 31,

Due within 0N Year ........cccccciviiiiviiiiri e ¥ 1,183 ¥ 1242 $ 11,809

Quel a_fEe_r ONE YEAI . vveviei i, s Sy 4,737 5,907 47,275
Total obligation  ......cecoeeriiiiii ¥ 5920 ¥ 7,149 $ 59,084
Derivatives

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate
swaps, interest rate cap and currency swaps.

The purposes of using those derivatives are to minimize interest payments on financing activities and to hedge
market risks associated with interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

The Group does not hold derivatives for trading or speculation purposes. Derivatives are subject to market and
credit risks.
Since the Group restricts their application of derivatives not to exceed their monetary assets and liabilities, the Group
does not anticipate any significant losses arising from market risks.

Sumitomo Metal Industries,Lid.
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atives are limited to major financial institutions with high credibility. Derivatives transactions are made in accordance
with internal reguiations which determine the authorization and credit fimit amount.

The Group had the following derivatives contracts outstanding as of March 31, 2008 and 2007.

Millions of yen

2007 2006
As of March 31, 2008 i March 31, 2007 K
Contract or Net Contract or Net
notional Fair unrealized notional Fair unrealized
. o ) o principal value gainfloss) pri_ng_ipal value gain{loss)
Foreign currency forward contracts: !
Selling USE oo ¥ 6,599|¥ 5956 ¥ 643 ¥ 13,658 ¥ 13,387 ¥ 271
Buying US$ ovvvviiiiiiaiesee e 5,085 4,878 (207) 85,454 85,377 (77)

Thousards of 1.5, dollars

2007
As of March 31, 2008
Contract or - Net —
notional Fair unrealized
principat value gainfloss)
Foreign currency forward contracts: l
Selling USS +ovvoveremeeeerrireenecereininians $65,867 | $59,447 | $ 6,420
Buying US$ vooevrceie e 50,750 | 48,688| (2,062)

The contract or notional principat of derivatives, which is shown in the above table, does not represent the
amounts exchanged by the parties and does not measure the Group’s exposure to credit or market risk.

Derivatives which qualify for hedge accounting for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, are excluded from
the disclosure of fair value information.

20. Related Party Transactions

Sumikin Bussan Corporation coordinates the sales of Sumitomo Metals' products and the purchasing of Sumitomo
Metals’ raw materials.

Sumitormo Metals owns 38.5% of the shares of Sumikin Bussan Corporation and one corporate auditor of Sumikin Bussan
Corporation concurrently serves bath Surnitomo Metals and Sumikin Bussan Corporation.

The significant transactions required to be disclosed with Sumikin Bussan Corporation for the years
ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, were as follows:

Thousands of
Milions of yen U.5. dollars
2007 2006 2007

L ) For the years ended March 31, 2008 Mairch 31,2007  March 31, 2008
Sale of steel and related products  ........ccooieiiininins ¥ 172,930 ¥ 151,942 $1,726,017
Purchase of raw material and steel products ... 257,310 194,433 2,568,222
Trade accounts receivable ..o 8,917 19,322 89,004
Trade accounts payable ... 57,208 50,948 570,996

Annual Report 2008 séﬁ-
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22.

Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities as of March 31, 2008, were as follows:

Trousands of
Millions of yen '_‘U.S. dollars
Guarantees and items of a similar nature:
Unconsofidated subsidiaries and associated companies ............... ¥ 687 $ 6,852
0] 11 7= - SO PO PSSR PPPY 1,016 10,142
Obligétion to re-purchaée transferred receivables under certain conditions ... 8,073 80,576

Segment Information

Information about industry segments and sales to foreign customers for the years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, was as
follows, (geographic segments information is not provided because more than 90% of sales are transacted in Japan):

(a) Industry segments

Millions of yen
2007
For the year ended March 31, 2008
; Corporate or

) - Steel Engineering  Electronics Other eliminations Consolidated

Sales to CuStOMers ......ccccccvveennnn... ¥1,622,368 ¥ 15,394 ¥ 61,631 ¥ 45,180 ¥1,744,573
intersegment sales ... 2,536 22,602 ¥(25,138)

Total sales......cccccveeiviiniieeininnns i 1,624,904 15,394 61,631 67,782 (25,138) 1,744,573
Cost of sales and operating expenses 1,355,867 15,236 61,866 61,968 (24,761) 1,470,176
Operating profit (loss) ........ccccen ¥ 269037 ¥ 158 ¥ (235) ¥ 5814 ¥ (377) ¥ 274,397
ASSEES  ooivieireeeeeeee e ¥1,818,005 ¥ 8,933 ¥151,815 ¥364,012 ¥ 75,455 ¥2,418,310
Depreciation...c.ccooeeeiieiine e 96,519 7 4,229 2,865 103,620
Impairment loss on fixed assets ...... 6,438 6,438
Capital expenditures ........cccccceeeenn 173,497 11 3,692 3,561 180,761

_ - Millions of yen _
2006

For the year ended March 31, 2007
) Corporate or

B i Steel ~ Engineering Electronics Other eliminations ~ Consolidated
Sales to customers ... ¥1,488,861 ¥ 10,785 ¥ 59,3890 ¥ 43,685 ¥ 1,602,720
intersegment sales ... 7 1,348 ) 19,191 ¥({20,539) o
Total SAES  .oveveeeereerieiiveeree e 1,490,209 10,78_5 59,389 62,876 (20,539) 1,602,720
Cost of sales and operating expenses 1,192,414 12,456 56,923 57,328 (20,175) 1,298,946
Operating profit {loss) ... ¥ 207795 ¥(1671) ¥ 2466 ¥ 5548 ¥  (364) ¥ 303,774
ASSEtS s ¥1,726,858 ¥ 7,752 ¥135,560 ¥362,823 ¥ 68,564 ¥2,301,557
Depreciation .......c..cccovvieviiiniinninn 67,945 8 3,014 2,414 73,381
Impairment loss on fixed assets ... 5,221 5,221
Capital expenditures..........c..ceo, 128,219 2 6,416 2,372 137,009

H Sumitomo Metal Industrios,bid.




"I_'h_o_u_sands of U.S. dotlars
2007
For the year ended March 31, 2008

| ) ‘Corporate or ’
Steel Engineering  Electronics Other eliminations  “onsalidated

Sales to customers ... $16,192,912 $153,650 $ 615,146 $ 450,938 $17,412,646
intersegment sales ........................ 25,315 225,593 $(250,908)

Total SAlES....eovveevereeeiieains SRR 16,218,227 153,650 615,146 676,531 (250,908) 17,412,646
Cost of sales and operating expenses 13,532,955 152,071 617488 618,502 (247,136) 14,673,880
Operating profit (J088) ....cooovoviieen. $ 2685272 % 1,579 % (2,342) $ 58,029 $ (3,772) $ 2,738,766
ASSBES  .oevvviiiiinirrrri $18,146,474 $ 89,158 $1,515,268 $3,633,216 $ 753,124 $24,137,240
Depreciation...c.cc oo 963,362 69 42,209 28,598 1,034,238
Impairment loss on fixed assets ...... 64,259 64,259
Capital expenditures........................ 1,731,684 106 36,853 35,537 1,804,180

Note:
"Steel Steel sheets and plates " Steal -pl_at'ees for structural uses, steel plates for low-temperature service, steel plates for Iin_e_pi;ﬁe.
high-tensile-strength steel plates and sheets, hot strip, cold strip, electro-magnetic steel sheets,
hot-dip galvanized steel sheets, electrolytic galvanized steel sheets, pre-painted steel sheets,
pre-coated steel sheets, stainless steel precision rolled strips, pure nickel, etc.
Constmctron materials ) H-shapes, fixed outer dimension H-shapes, lightweight welded beams, sheet piles, steel pipe piles, etc.
Steei tubes and pipe : Seamless steel tubes and pipes, electric resistance welded tubes and pipes, Iarge-diaméter- arc-welded
pipes, hot ERW, specially shaped tubes, various coated tubes and pipes, stainless steel tubes and pipes, etc.
PSteel bars and wira reds ” Speci'ai quality bars, cold heading guality wira rods, spring quality bars, machining steel,
bearing steet, stainless bars and wire rods, elc.
' Railway, automotive, ! Wheels, a.xleé, bogie trucks, gear units for electric cars, couhlérs. etc.
and n'1a::h|ner).r parts
Steel castmgs and iorgmgs " Die forged crankshafts, materials for moids, aluminum wheels, ﬂange for transmission 1ower crane wheels, rolls, etc
Semu -finished iron producls " Steel billets, pig iron tor steel making, etc.

Others Ttamum products, steel making technology, electric power supply, land and sea transport oi steel materials,

. mamtenance of machinery and tamlmes pipelines, thermal plant and pipeline enganeenng, sale o! limestone, etc. ]
..Engineering T - Steel brlcige “stee) structure for civil engmeerlng etc. 7
PElectrcunics o ic packages electronic modules, etc.

TOther T ! Lease and sale of reat estate, research and testing specializing in materials analysis and evaluatmn etc. o

As mentioned in “02 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” Sumitomo Metals and its domestic sub-
sidiaries changed their depreciation methods over property, plant and equipment acquired on and after April 1,2007
in accordance with the revised corporate tax law, which is effective for fiscal years beginning on and after April
1,2007. This treatment increased cost of sales and operating expenses by ¥3,091million ($30,848 thousand) for
the Steel segment, ¥133 million {$1,330 thousand) for the Electronics segment and ¥119 million ($1,191 thousand)
for the Other segment. As a result, operating profit {Joss) decreased by the same amount in each segment.

Also stated in “02 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” property, plant and equipment of Sumitomo
Metals and its domestic subsidiaries acquired before March 31,2007 had been depreciated up to 5% of
acquisition cost with 5% of residual value carried under the former corporate tax law. In accordance with the revised
corporate tax law, however, such 5% portion of property, plant and equipment is systematically depreciated over
5 years starting in the following year in which the carrying value of property, plant and equipment reaches 5% of
the acquisition cost. This treatment increased cost of sales and operating expenses by ¥10,791 million
($107,708 thousand) for the Steel segment, ¥0 million ($3 thousand) for the Engineering segment,¥200 million ($1,999
thousand) for the Electronics segment and ¥68million ($679 thousand) for the Other segment. Operating profit (loss)
decreased by the same amount in each segment.

{b) Sales to foreign customers

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. doilars
2007 2006 2007
) ) For the years ended  March 31, 2008  March 3_1,?007 March 31, 2008
1T O OO ¥ 517,860 ¥ 448,733 $5,168,779
Other o 194,531 213,639 1,941,618

¥ 712,391 ¥ 662,372 $7,110,397
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&J. Business Combinations and Business Separations

There were no business combinations and business separations which had a material impact on the financial state-
ments for the year ended March 31, 2008, while there were business combinations and business separations which
had a material impact on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2007 and the detailed information
of the event was as follows:

On December %, 2006, the construction steel sheet division of Sumitomo Metal Steel Products Inc., a con-
solidated subsidiary of Sumitomo Metals, and Nittetsu Steel Sheet Corporation, a consolidated subsidiary of Nippen
Steel Corporation, were merged to form Nippon Steel & Sumikin Ceated Sheet Corporation, and the road and civil
enginegering products division of Sumitomo Metal Steef Products Inc. and Nippon Steel Metal Products Co., Ltd.,
a consolidated subsidiary of Nippon Steet Corporation, were also merged to form Nippon Steel & Sumikin
Metal Products Co., Ltd., to make them more efficient in structure, and more competitive,

The above business separation was accounted for as follows:

Milions of yen

Gain on changes of equity interests in associated COMPANIES ........cccccceerriiiinieennnenn s iinnnnnns ¥ 9,071
The assets and the liabilities of the transferred business
B B SEE  oeiiiiitieeeeeeeeeear et e e et ettt e aeeaa et et e eneee ettt aaranrrrren 14,406
(=Y oY1 L1 1= T OO SO SRS 11,588

The sales amount and operating loss of the separated business up to the separation point in FY 2006 (ended
March 31, 2007 ) were approximately ¥27.643 million and ¥888 million, respectively.
One Sumitomo Metals employee serves as a director of Nippon Steel & Sumikin Coated Sheet Corporation.

24. Net Income Per Share

Reconciliation of the differences between basic and diluted net income per share (“EPS”) for the year ended March
31, 2007 were as foliows, while information of diluted net income per share for the year ended March 31, 2008 is
not applicable since there were no residual securities with diluting effects.

Thousands of
Mitions cfyep shares ) Yen
Wenghted average
_ o o . Net income shares EPS
For the year ended March 31, 2007:
Basic EPS
Net income available to cornmon shareholders ............. PN ¥ 226,726 4,734,669 ¥ 47.89
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries
and associated companies ................... TR RTINS {68}
Diluted ERS
Net income for computation ......covveeiiiiicees e ¥ 226,658 4,734,669 ¥ 47.89

25. Subsequent Event

Appropriation of retained earnings
The following appropriation of retained earnings as of March 31,2008 was resolved at the Board of Directors held
on May 13, 2008:

Thousands of
N o B o . Millions of yen .S, ¢oltars
Dividends, ¥5.00 ($0.05) PET Share ...cccevivvvoiiimeeieeecteeeece e ¥ 23,195 $ 231,505
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e 0| e [ ] Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

M$ Shibaura Building
4-13-23, Shibaura
Minato-ku, Tokyo 108-8530
Japan

Tel: +81(3)3457 731
Fax: +81(3)3457 1694
www.deloitte.com/jp

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.
("Sumitomo Metals™ and consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended,

all expressed in Japanese yen. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
Sumitomo Metals' management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

‘We conducted our audits in accardance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principies used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Sumitomo Metals and consolidated subsidiaries as of
March 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Our audits also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and,
in our opinion, such translation has been made in conformity with the basis stated in Note 1. Such
U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

June 19, 2008

Member of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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l INVeSTIOor INTOrMation (as of march 31, 2008)

Corporate Data

Company Name: Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.

Annual General

Incorporated:  July 1949 Shareholders’ Meeting:  June
Employees: 6,950 Shareholder Record Date

Fiscal year: April 1—March 31 for the Year: March 31
Paid-in Capital: for the Interim Period: September 30

¥ 262,072,369,221

Osaka Head Office Tokyo Head Office
=: I;’ublic R;—Iations & Inv;éft_)r Relatidgb_eb_a“r—t?ﬁgh_t_ S - _11
Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd.
F ?:; ":‘I:‘ll'l;hgrl; 1-8-11 Harumi, Chuo-ku Tokyo 104-6111, Japan [
nformati Tel: +81-3-4416-6111 E-mail: ir@sumitomometals.co.jp |
Website: http://www.sumitomometals.co.jp/e/ !
e — e e e e e e e e ———ee
Stock Information
Stock Code:; 5405
Shares Authorized: 10 billion shares
Shares Issued; 4,805,974,238 shares

Trading Unit:
Administrator of Register of

Shareholders:

{Mailing Address):

{Phone Inquiries):

Other Administration Offices:

American Depagsitary Receipts:

Stock Listings:

Sumitome Metal Industries,tid.

(including 167,067,695 treasury shares}
1,000 shares

Stock Transfer Agency Department,
The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.
4-5-33 Kitahama, Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0041, Japan

Stock Transfer Agency Department,
The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Co., Lid.
1-10 Nikko-cho, Fuchu-shi, Tokyo 183-8701, Japan

Request for change of address form: 0120-175-417"
Other inquiries: 0120-176-417*

"Toll-free number for domestic phone calls anly
Inquiries from overseas: +81-42-351-2225

Nationwide branches of The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.

The Bank of New York Mellon

101 Barclay Street, New York, NY 10286, U.S.A.
Toll-free number (U.S.A.). 888-269-2377
Inguiries from outside U.S.A.: +1-866-680-6825

Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya, Fukuoka, Sapporo




Principal Shareholders (As of March 31, 2008)

ipvestmentin) WMislels
Sheres Gumed
[oEan) tat o)
Sumitomo Corporation 458,326 9.88
| Nippon Steel Corporation 451,761 | 9T4
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Lid. {account in trust) 199,942 4.31
{ The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (account in trust) 155,574 3.35 ‘
Kobe Steel, Ltd. 112,565 2.43
Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. |
e Sumitoms st and Banking Co. Ly oS seeont e eniueie? 90,315 195
Nippon Life Insurance Company 88,920 1.92 |
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Lid. 68,206 1.47
The Sumitomo Trust and Banking Co., Ltd. 60,000 1.29
{ Sumitomo Life Insurance Company 51,504 1.11
olal 1,787,118 K34

Notes:1. Ratio of total issued shares is calculated excluding treasury stock.

2. The 90,315 thousand shares registered in the name of Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation retirement banefit trust
account re-entrusted by The Sumitome Trust and Banking Co., Ltd.) are beneficially owned by Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation and are held as a retirement
benefit trust by Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corparation holds the voting rights for these shares.

3, Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation holds 28,090 thousand shares (0.61% of total issued shares) in addition 1o thase described above.

Share Ownership by Group

|
| (As of March 31, 2008)
i
I

@ Financial institutions
@ Other corporations

@® Individual investors, etc.

@ Foreign investors

{ * Excluding treasury stock.

- J— - —— — — — -

Sumitomo Metals’ Share Price on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
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